Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Board of Directors

Michael McBride, President

Judy Corl-Lorono, Vice President
David Larson, Director

Agency Office
622 S, Jemez Trail
Yucca Valley, CA 92284-1440

Terry Burkhart, Director 760/364-2315 Phone
J. Dennis Staley, Director 760/364-3412 Fax
Marina D West, P.G., General Manager

A Public Agency www.bdvwa.org

PLANNING/LEGISLATIVE/ENGINEERING
GRANT & SECURITY COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

BOARD MEETING OFFICE
1720 N. Cherokee Trail, Landers, CA 82285
Thursday, June 21, 2012 - 8:45 a.m.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Director Cori-Lorono & Director Burkhart

The BDVWA Planning / Legislative / Engineering / Grant & Security Committee meeting will be conducted
in strict compliance with the Brown Act. Members of the Board not assigned to this Commitiee who
attend may do so enly as observers and may not pariicipate in the meeting.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLLCALL

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS - The Committee and Staff wilt discuss the following items
and provide direction to staff, if so inclined.

The Public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item.
When giving your public comment, please have your information prepared, if you wish to be

. identified for the record then please state your name. Due to time constraints, each member of
the public will be allotted three-minutes to provide their public comment.

June 21, 2012 PLEGS Meeting Agenda
Posted 06-15-12
BPare 1 afF 2



10.

1.

12.

13.

CHANGE IN SCHEDULE FOR THE MOJAVE WATER AGENCY LEGAL, LEGISLATIVE
AND PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE

AMES/RECHE GROUND WATER STORAGE AND RECOVERY PROGRAM UPDATE -
VERBAL REPORT

REVIEW COSTS AND SCOPE OF SERVICES PROVIDED BY CHIEF ENGINEER TO
PREPARE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT
ICONSTRUCTION INSPECTION SERVICES FOR RECOATING AND REPAINTING OF
TWO RESERVOIRS AT A COST ESTIMATE OF $86,000

DISCUSS EXPANSION OF AGENCY SPHERE OF INFLUENCE EAST OF EXISTING
BOUNDARY AND STRATEGIES FOR ADDRESSING COMMUNITY OUTREACH FOR
EVENTUAL "PROTEST VOTE" REGARDING REORGANIZATION (CONSOLIDATION)
WITH BIGHORN-DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY

CONSENT ITEMS - The following is expected to be routine and non-controversial and will
be acted on by the Committee members at one time without discussion, unless a member
of the Public or a Committee member requests that an item be held for discussion or
further action.

a. Regular PLEGS Committee Meeting Report, April 19, 2012
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Any person may address the Committee on any matter within the Agency's jurisdiction on
items not appearing on this agenda.

When giving your public comment, please have your information prepared, if you wish to
be identified for the record then please state your name. Due to time constraints, each
member of the public will be allotted three-minutes to provide their public comment. State
Law prohibits the Committee from discussing or taking action on items not included on the
agenda.

VERBAL REPORTS

a. COMMITTEE MEMBERS' COMMENTS/REPORT
b. GENERAL MANAGER'S REFPORT

ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA

ADJOURNMENT

In accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 54954.2, this
agenda has been posted in the main lobby of the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency, 622 S.
Jemez Trail, Yucca Valley, CA not less than 72 hours if prior to a Regular meeting, date and
time above; or in accordance with California Government Code Section 54956 this agenda has
been posted not less than 24 hours if prior to a Special meeting, date and time above.

June 21, 2012 PLEGS Meeting Agenda
Posted 06-15-12
Page 2 of 3



As a general rule, agenda reports or other written documentation has been prepared or
organized with respect to each item of business listed on the agenda.

Copies of these materials and other discloseable public records in connection with an open
session agenda item, are also on file with and available for inspection at the Office of the
Agency Secretary, 622 S. Jemez Trail, Yucca Valley, California, during regular business hours,
8:00 A.M. to 4:30 P.M., Monday through Friday. If such writings are distributed to members of
the Board of Directors on the day of a Board meeting, the writings will be available at the
entrance to the Board of Directors meeting room at the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency.

Internet: Once uploaded, agenda materials can also be viewed at www.bdvwa.org.

Public Comments: You may wish to submit your comments in writing to assure that you are able
to express yourself adeguately.

Per Government Code Section 54954.2, any person with a disability who requires a modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the meeting,
should contact the Board's Secretary at 760-364-2315 during Agency business hours.

June 21, 2012 PLEGS Meeting Agenda
Posted 06-15-12
Page3of3



BIGHORN DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY STANDING COMMITTEE
PLANNING/LEGISLATIVE/ENGINEERING/GRANTS/SECURITY
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTAL

Meeting Date: June 21, 2012
To: Board of Directors Budgeted: No

Budgeted Amount: Unknown
From: Marina D. West General Counsel Approval: Yes

CEQA Compliance: N/A

Subject: Change in Schedule for the Mojave Water Agency Legal, Legislative and Public
Information Commiittee

SUMMARY

Mojave Water Agency has decided to change the date of their regularly scheduled Legal,
Legislative and Public Information Committee (LLP!) from the third Thursday of the month to
the first Wednesday of the month to beiter accommodate their staff's schedule.

The Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency Planning/Legislative/Engineering/Grant/Security
Standing Committee has scheduled, through Board Policy Statement No. 08P-03, its
meetings to be concurrent with the LLPI so as to take advantage of the updates MWA
receives from its state and federal legislative advocates.

The Committee should discuss whether or not their meeting time should be modified to
coincide with the new MWA LLPI schedule.

RECOMMENDATION

Discuss whether or not to direct staff to bring Policy Statement No. 08P-03 to the full Board to
revise the standing meeting date for the Planning/Legislative/Engineering/Grant/Security
Standing Committee.

BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS

The Mojave Water Agency has decided to change the date of their regularly scheduled Legal,
Legislative and Public Information Committee (LLPI) from the third Thursday of the month at
9am to the first Wednesday of the month at 9:30 am to better accommodate their staffs
schedule.

The Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency Planning/Legislative/Engineering/Grant/Security
Standing Committee (PLEGS) has scheduled, through Board Policy Statement No. 08P-03,
its meetings to be concurrent with the LLPI so as to take advantage of the updates MWA
receives from its state and federal legislative advocates.

The Committee should discuss whether or not their meeting dateftime should be modified to
coincide with the new MWA LLP] schedule.

PRIOR RELEVANT BOARD ACTION(S)
8/26/2008 Policy Statement No. 08P-03 A policy statement of the Board of Directors
establishing Standing Committees and authorizing the creation of Ad Hoc Committees.



POLICY STATEMENT NO. 08P-03

POLICY STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
BIGHORN-DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY
ESTABLISHING STANDING COMMITTEES AND AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF
AD HOC COMMITTEES

The purpose of this policy statement is to ensure efficient administration of the
Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency (“Agency”) by the establishment of standing
committees of the Board of Directors (“Board”) and the authorization for the creation of
ad hoc committees of the Board. Standing committees allow for the productive use of
Directors’ individual expertise on matters and to work with staff in developing better
background information for the full Board's consideration.

All standing committees shall be subject to meeting requirements specified under
the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government code sections 54950 through 54963.

The Board President shall, with board consensus, appoint and publicly announce
the members of the standing committees at the first regularly-scheduled meeting of the
Board in February of each year and at other meetings of the Board as circumstances
may require.

Fach committee shall have a maximum of two (2) members and each standing
committee shall hold a scheduled meeting six (6) times per year.

All standing committee meetings of the Bighom-Desert View Water Agency shall
hereafter be held at the Bighorn Office located at 1720 N. Cherokee Tr., Landers, CA
92285

All standing committee meetings, Adjourned standing committee meetings and
Special standing committee meetings may be fixed from time to time and by legal public
notice, to other locations within and without the agency, at times as determined by the
standing committee or Board of Directors.

The Board's standing committees shall be assigned to review Agency functions,
activities, and/or operations pertaining to their designated concemns as specified. Any
recommendations resuilting from said review shall be submitted to the Board via a
written or oral report.

The following shall be the Board's standing committees, duties, and meeting
schedule:

Planning & Engineering/Legislative/Grant Committee-Meetings of the Bighorn-
Desert View Water Agency Planning & Engineering/Legislative/Grant Committee shall
hereafter be held on the 3 Thursday of every other month, beginning August 2008, at
the hour of 08:45 a.m.



Planning & Engineering-shall be concerned with, but not limited to, the study
and development of Agency operational goals, including planning /engineering reviews
and proposals of capital improvement projects as well as the development and periodic
review of an Agency general plan, safety and security issues (i.e. Homeland Security,
Vulnerability Assessment and facilities general security).

Legislative-shall be concerned with matters related to, or involving other
governmental and/or regulatory agencies which may have an effect on the Agency. it
shall monitor and review legislation or potential legislation which may affect the Agency.
The committee shall also annually review existing ordinances, resolution and/or Agency
policies, except those pertaining specifically to personnel matters.

Grant-shall be concerned with matters refated to, or involving other
governmental and/or regulatory agencies which may have an effect on the Agency's
grants or grant policies. It shall monitor and review grant legislation or potential grant
legislation which may affect the Agency and monitor and review progress of grant
funded projects. This committee shall work directly with the General Manager and
Grant Consultant(s) in an effort to obtain/secure grants.

Finance/Personnel/Pubic Relations & Education Committee-Meetings of the
Bighom-Desert View Water Agency Finance/Personnel/Public Relations & Education
Committee shail hereafter be held on the 2™ Wednesday of every other month,
beginning September 2008, at the hour of 4:00 p.m.

Finance-shall be concerned about, but not limited to the financial management
of the Agency, including the preparation of an annual budget, periodic reviews of
Agency revenues, Agency investments, expenditures, and audit.

Personnel-shall be concerned with the functions, activities, compensation, and
welfare of agency staff. This committee shall work directly with the General Manager on
personnel related matters.

Public Relations & Education-shall be concerned with assuring that information
relative to the affairs of the Agency is accurately and appropriately communicated to the
public. This committee shall worlk with staff on the Agency Newsletter and website;
developing and communicating water education programs for the public; the
development of community, customer, and employee relations programs to enhance
Agency/Customer relationships and understanding.

Morongo Basin Pipeline Commission/Mojave Water Agency Technical Advisory
Committee Representative(s)- A member of the Planning & Engineering
subcommittee shall be appointed as the representative (the “Representative”) of the
Agency to the Mojave Water Agency TAC meetings and shall be concerned with
assuring the costs of the Morongo pipeline are proportionately charged to the benefiting
districts/agencies, and that the Agency has representation on the Mojave Water Agency
TAC on matters affecting the Agency. The Representative shall attend all Morongo
Basin Pipeline Commission and Mojave Water Agency TAC meetings. An alternate
Representative may also be appointed if the primary Representative is unable to attend
any Commission or TAC meetings.



Ad Hoc Committee Appointments-The Board President shall, with board consensus,

appoint such ad hoc committees as may be deemed necessary by the President or the

Board of Directors. The duties of the ad hoc cammittees shall be outlined at the time of
appointment, and the committee shall be considered dissolved when its final report has
been made.

This policy becomes effective immediately upon adoption and hereby rescinds Policy
Statement 08P-02

Policy Statement No. 08P-03 was adopted at a regular meeting of the board held on
August 26, 2008

|, the undersigned, hereby certify that | am the duly appointed Secretary of the Board of
Directors of the Agency, and that at a regular meeting of the Board held on August 26,
2008 the foregoing Policy Statement No. 08P-03 was adopted by said Board and that it
has not been rescinded or amended since the date of its adoption, and is now in full
force and effect.

}ﬁu{ Heller, Board Secretary



BIGHORN DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY STANDING COMMITTEE
PLANNING/ILEGISLATIVE/ENGINEERING/GRANTS/SECURITY
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTAL

Meeting Date: June 21, 2012
To: Board of Directors Budgeted: No
Budgeted Amount: Unknown
From: Marina D. West General Counsel Approval: Yes
CEQA Compliance: N/A
Subject: Review Costs and Scope of Services Provided by Chief Engineer to Prepare

Contract Documents and Project Management/Construction Inspection Services
for Recoating and Repainting of Two Reservoirs at a Cost Estimate of $85,000

SUMMARY

At the February 2012 goal setting workshop, one of the identified Capital Improvement
Projects for Fiscal Year 2012/13 was refurbishment of up to two reservoirs serving the “B-
Zone". At staff's request, Chief Engineer Krieger has prepared cost and scope of services for
preparation of bid specifications, project management and on-site inspection services. The
cost estimate to provide these engineering services is $85,000.

Chief Engineer Krieger will participate via teleconference during the meeting to review the
proposal and answer any questions from the Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

Discuss proposal to prepare plans and specifications project management and on-site
inspection services. Provide direction to staff in bringing this item to the full Board in July for
further consideration including approval of the scope of services and authorization to solicit
bids from quaiified contractors.

BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS
See attached scope and fee for services.

PRIOR RELEVANT BOARD ACTION(S)
2/10/2012 Board Goal Setting Workshop: Identifying Reservoirs B3 and B4 as priority
tanks for recoating.



WORK ORDER NO. 4A

BIGHORN-DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY
RECOATING AND REPAINTING TWO RESERVOIRS

SCOPE OF SERVICES

We have organized our scope of services for the Recoating and Localized Repainting of the Two Existing
Reservoirs as follows:

Review Reports by Others

Site Visit/Evaluation of Scope of Work
CEQA Documenis

Preparation of Draft Contract Documents
Review Meeting with Agency Staff
Preparation of Final Contract Documents
Bid Phase Services

Construction Engineering Services

PN AN

Each component is discussed in detail in the following paragraphs:

1.

Review Reports by Others

As a first item of work, we will review the available reservoir inspection reports prepared by
others related to the Agency's reservoirs as a means of double checking our field evaluation
(see No. 2 below).

Site Visit/Evaluation of Scope of Work

We will meet with Agency staff to discuss the project in detail prior to beginning services. At
this meeting, we will also review our Basic Welded Steel Water Storage Reservoir Coating and
Painting Specifications and our schedule. We will also confirm with Agency staff which two
reservoirs will be selected for recoating and localized repainting. At the conclusion of the
meeting, we will field review the selected reservoir sites to assess the condition of the existing,
interior and exterior coating systems, and to determine if there are any structural or safety
deficiencies. We will determine the modifications required to maintain the safety, security,
sanitary, and structural compliance with AWWA, CAL-OSHA, Federal OSHA, Section 29 of the
Code of Federal Regulations, Office of Homeland Security Resolution No. 3448 (Bioterrorism
Risk) and California Department of Public Health, National Sanitation Foundation Rule 61 (NSF
61).

It is our understanding the existing reservoirs will be drained and that we will have the
opportunity to inspect the reservoir interior as well as the exterior.



CEQA Documents

Activities involving the operation, repair and maintenance of existing facilities are categorically
exempt from CEQA (Class 1 Categorical Exemption) if the activity does mot result in a
significant, cumulative, adverse effect on the environment, or in a significant adverse effect on
the environment due to unusual circumstances; we anticipate the proposed project will require
only an exemption. We will prepare a Preliminary Exemption Assessment (PEA) and a Notice of
Exemption (NOE) for the Project and file them with the County Clerk prior to field construction
activities.

Preparation of Draft Contract Documents

The Contract Documents will be based on Krieger & Stewart's standard specifications. We will
prepare the notice inviting bids, bid sheets, special requirements, and technical specifications.
Special requirements will address the mandatory pre-bid meeting, reservoir details (capacity,
height, diameter, structural components, history of coating and painting, and required remedial
work), working hours, permits, site access, data to be submitted by the contractor, construction
water and power, restoration of the work site, disposal of waste materials, payment requests,
safety, and disposal of sandblast sand.

The technical specifications will include Krieger & Stewart's Basic Welded Steel Water Storage
Reservoir Coating and Painting Specifications, which address submittals, sequence of work,
inspection, surface preparation, materials, application, detailed requirements for the painting and
coating systems, disinfection, and clean-up, Additional technical specifications and/or special
requirement for all structural and safety modifications that are identified.

Review Meeting with Agency Staff

We will arrange a review meeting with Agency staff to review the draft contract documents; one
week prior to said meeting, we will provide Agency staff with three copies of the draft contract
documents, as well as an Engineer's Cost Estimate for the project. The purpose of the meeting
will be to review the draft contract documents in detail and obtain the Agency's comments or
approval regarding same.

Preparation of Final Contract Documents

Based on comments received from Agency staff during the review meeting, we will revise the
Contract Documents as required and submit to the Agency for final approval.

Bid Phase Services
a, Pre-Bid Procedures

During the bid period, we will arrange and conduct the mandatory pre-bid meeting,
during which prospective bidders will be afforded the opportunity to visit each site and
become familiar with the project’s requirements. We will also answer questions from
contractors and material suppliers regarding the project. If any questions or concerns are



not clearly addressed in the contract documents, we will prepare an addendum regarding
same. Prior to preparing the addendum, we will review the questions or concerns with
Agency staff. Once the addendum is prepared, we will call all prospective bidders to
alert them of the addendum, and will then fax the addendum to each bidder with proof of
same provided to Agency staff,

Krieger & Stewart will provide the legal advertisement for the project and make the
contract documents available to contractors and material suppliers.

Bid Opening and Post-Bid Procedures

We will attend the bid opening and assist Agency staff in opening bids. After the bid
opening, we will review each bid to ensure that the bid amounts are correct. Thereafier,
we will review the entire set of contract documents for the apparent low bidder and check
each reference listed to determine the competence of the contractor. We will also verify
that the apparent low bidder’s license is current and valid, and that the various bonds are
in full compliance with the requirements of the contract documents.

If any irregularities exist with the bids, we will review same with Agency staff and the
Agency's legal counsel (if necessary); thereafier, we will prepare a Recommendation of
Award Memorandum summarizing all bids received, identifying the apparent lowest
responsive bid, identifying any bid irregularities, a summary of legal counsel's
recommendations regarding bid iregularities (if any), and provide a recommendation of
award,

Construction Engineering Services

a.

Preconstruction Meeting

The preconstruction meeting will be attended by Agency staff, Krieger & Stewart's
project manager, Krieger & Stewart's construction inspector, and the Contractor. Said
meeting will be used to review the Contract Documents and the proposed work. After
said meeting, we will prepare a memorandum of same to be distributed to the Agency and
Contractor.

Submittal Review

Krieger & Stewart will review and approve all submittals. We expect submittals to be
required for sandblasting materials, all coating and painting materials, and all structural
or safety improvement materials,

Contract Administration

Throughout the course of construction, Krieger & Stewart's project manager will respond
to inquiries regarding the Contract Documents (i.e. Requests for Information) to ensure
that the project is constructed in compliance with same. Contract administration
activities will inclnde site visits, review of inspection reports, conferences with the



construction inspector, progress reviews to ensure that the project is proceeding
according to schedule, progress reviews with Agency staff, and related services.

Problems or questions during construction will be resolved by Krieger & Stewart's
project manager and construction inspector. If a situation occurs requiring an Agency
decision, Agency staff will be consulted. The project manager will review the project
with Agency staff on a regular basis.

Each month, we will review the construction payment requests submitted by the
Contractor. We will review the work completed and payment requests to ensure that the
quantities and amounts requested reflect the actual work completed. After each request
has been reviewed (and revised if necessary), we will approve it and send it to the
Apency for payment.

Any extra work requests will be reviewed to determine if said requests are warranted. [f
extra work requests are not warranted, we will reject same in writing. Prior to sending
letters to Contractor, we will review same with Agency staff. If extra work requests
appear warranted, said requests will be reviewed with the construction inspector and
compared to the field reports for confirmation of materials, equipment, and labor
involved. Thereafter, we will review same with Agency staff prior to approving extra
work and preparing change orders.

Through telephone conferences, meetings, and presentations, the project manager will
keep Agency staff informed of project progress, difficulties during construction, and any
changes in work. Whenever possible, the project manager will review any required
changes with Agency staff prior to making same.

Construction Inspection

We will perform inspection on an as-needed basis in accordance with a schedule arranged
between the Contractor and our project manager. We anticipate that inspections will be
performed every other day during coating operations (depending on the Contractor's work
schedule).

We will observe and document surface preparation, coating application, curing
procedwres, and reservoir disinfection in addition to all work related to structural or
safety. We have developed guidelines and procedures that each of our inspectors follows
throughout reservoir construction, modification, coating and painting projects.

Our construction inspector will prepare field reports which will document daily project
activity, including location of the activity, number of workers present, inspector(s)
present, weather conditions, construction progress, any defects noted, corrective actions
ordered and/or taken, and test/acceptance activities and results. In addition to our daily
field reports, we will provide photographic documentation of the progress of the project
and record all dry film thickness measurements for reinspection and permanent
documentation.

Project Acceptance



After all deficiencies are corrected, our project manager will prepare a letter to the
Agency recommending acceptance of the project. We will also determine a substantial
completion date (if different from actual completion date), prepare and final a Notice of
Completion, and confirm that no stop notices have been filed prior to recommending final
payment by Agency.



WMWY bl

(zrozsye)

|- Flqe /s34 T2 68

INVS

A T
LYY
TN ¥3d 2208 ONY 'ditlL ¥3d ST 091 "MITM H3d SHHL END QISYE 9
'aoly3ad
NOILOMHLSNGD H33AA L GILVINILST FHL 43AD (AvO H3d SHNOH 8 LY MA3M ¥3d SAYQ
€) X330 H3d SHNOH BI40 FOVHIAY NY ONIJS TIM HOLOIJSNI NOILONHIENGD THL
'00I43d NOLLDAYLSNOD HIIM v THL ¥IAOC MIIM HId SMNAOH 3 40
ADVUIAY NV ONIdS 1TIM YIDYNYIN LOIrOodd ONY IDUYHO-NEFTVLIONING THL ¥aIHIID0L
"HIOANISIY HOVE HO4 syIam
Z 38 Ol Q3LvWILST FHOS3UIHL SI FWIL NOILDMYLSNOD TWLI0L IHL "HIoAYISTIH
FHL L1234NISIO ONY NYIT1D DL M33M L ONY 'HOIMILX3 HIOAMISIH 3HL INIVY
01 ¥33M | ‘MOO0T4 3HL 1Y0D NV LSYT8 OL 333M L 'SLY0D OMHL ONY ONOD3S SHL
Alddv OL ¥33m | 'LVOO SWINd 3HL J0 NOILYDITddY ONY NOILYHYdIdd 30v-4uns
HO4 SXEFM Z MHOM IWILIWIY ALTJVSIVENLONYLE 40 INILX2 NOdn LNIDNILNOD)
MHOM IVIOIWIY HOd H33A L 3HINDIY TIAM HOLDYHINOD 'HI0AM3STY HOvI HOd
'SAMOTI04 SY QIZIMYIWANS 0O0IETd NOLLDNYISNGD
¥3am FL CALYAILSE NY NO d3Isve 51 SIDIAYAS SONINAINIONT NOILOAH1SNOD o)
008'58% ‘{lgaannoy) 334 aaLywiLs3 M Sols @ HOL334SNI NOJLONYLSNDD
Hf EBS @ AdvLIHDAS
aes'ses TYLAL SFAIAYIS NOLLITISNI ONY NOLLYH LSININGY NOILONYLSNDD H 0218 ® HOLYHIdo aavD
4 8518 @ HIIANIONT HOINTS
BESTE (S LS00 FDVHIN NOILDIJSNE M/ o8l @ HIANIONT IVdIONIEd
oor'es {03ONNOY '%E B a3 LvINILS3) SA18YSHNEWIZY
peEg'als DRR'SE  BSE gg9', 26 08g'L ¥l Zev'ic Ll alo'sk AL violans
0oy'szs oS’z 25z 1) NOILOAdSNI NOILONYLSNOD g
opo'pis oek's 09 0oc5'y 74 {1 NOLLVHLZININGY 1aVdINOD g
ObZ'ES FAA ¥ HES'T 8t OBE [4 MIINTH TWLLINBAS ‘B
A4 ozy ¥ ZEE v 2o ¥ (=12 ¥ ONILIIN NQAILINYLENODIHd 'V
) SIDIAYTS ONIYIINIONT NOILDNHISNOD g
BEV'SS BEE'L gl osl'e oz uss 5 SAVNYIS ISYHI Q19 L
B5z'sg z66'L vE 08y ¥ Al 8 O2S't 8 SINIWMD0a LOYELNOD TYNId 40 NOILYYYdaEYd "D
¥S2'zs ggl z 8ve ] ari't g 44YLS LOIMLSIO HLIM ONILIIN M3INTY 'S
opL'els ozE'e av [varl® oL DZE's ok oos' ol SINIWNDO0C LOYHINOD 14vHQ 40 NOILYNYdINd v
SIN3INNO0T LOVHINGD Ld¥HA 40 NQILYHYdIHd HLIAA G2GMTONI 81 534 SINGWNO0Q VO30 B
ZreE'ps o5l [ 958°L A? ogeg'z 2t 3d02% 40 NOLLYNIYAI/LISIA ILIS €
yHLTS ¥zt g8 Ges't 8 SHIHLO AS SLUDdIY MIAIATY ‘L
Tvlol [ H SHNOH [ SHN0OH § SHNOH § SHNOH LNINOdWOD
(5 JOLITASNI ) TYOIRETD i S30IAHAS ) HIDYNYIN o) IOYYHO
NOLLOAMLSNDD aaqvo Lo3royd “NFTYdIONIMd

S3JIAHIE ONIHIIINIONT ¥0d 9331 03 LYNILSS
SUIOANZSIY OML ONLLNIVH4IH NV ONILV0O3Y

AJNIDY ¥3LVYM MIIA LU3S30-NYOHDIE

I 378v1



BIGHORN DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY STANDING COMMITTEE
PLANNING/LEGISLATIVE/ENGINEERING/GRANTS/SECURITY
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTAL

Meeting Date: June 21, 2012

To: Board of Directors Budgeted: No
Budgeted Amount: Unknown

From: Marina D. West General Counsel Approval: Yes
CEQA Compliance: N/A

Subject:  Discuss Expansion of Agency Sphere of Influence East of Existing Boundary and
Strategies for Addressing Community Qutreach for Eventual “Protest Vote"
Regarding Reorganization (Consolidation) with Bighorn-Desert View Water
Agency

SUMMARY

Attached is the final Resolution from the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)
which marks the conclusion of the Agency's first Municipal Sphere Review/Sphere of
Influence process. The Resolution confirms LAFCO’s decision to expand our Sphere of
Influence over the County Special Districts Zone W-1/Landers (W-1).

Staff is seeking the Committee’s input on how to proceed with the implied mandate to plan for
service expansion into “Area 2",

RECOMMENDATION

Discuss goal to reorganize (consolidate) County Special Districts Zone W-1 into Bighom-
Desert View Water Agency.

BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS

Attached is the final Resolution from the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)
which marks the conclusion of the Agency's first Municipal Sphere Review/Sphere of
Influence process.

Ultimately, a move to reorganize (dissolve W-1 and annex to BDVWA), initiated through
either a formal Board Resolution or a community petition, will require “protest proceedings”
per LAFCO.

The Board of Directors has expressed a strong desire to reorganize with the W-1 territories to
provide for more efficient and effective operations, local governance focus solely on provision
of water service (not county-wide business), and cost effectiveness through “economies of
scale’. Achieving this goal for the betterment of the community begins with an outreach plan
to educate the public and to build support for a future proposal to LAFCO, or not.



Some topics the Committee may want to explore first include the following:

Should an Ad Hoc Committee be formed to support the goal to reorganize with W-1?
What are the necessary steps to complete the process of reorganization? What are
the major milestones and when should they be completed?

What liabilities is the Agency going to incur if it reorganizes and assumes responsibility
for W-17?

How do we determine the physical condition of the existing water system?

Why does County Special Districts charge so much more per customer than BDVWA?
What are the actual overhead costs and operating costs of W-1?

When should community workshops be convened? What are the goals for the
workshops?

What will it take to obtain County Special Districts support for reorganization?

Who's been successful in reorganizing a County (improvement) Zone into their Special
District or Community Services District and what obstacles did they encounter?

At this time staff is seeking the Committee’s input on how to proceed with the implied
mandate to plan for service expansion into “Area 2".

PRIOR RELEVANT BOARD ACTION(S)

4/3/2012 Motion 12-026 Local Area Formation Commission Ad Hoc Committee Report and
Resolution No. 12R-15 Supporting the Expansion of the BDVWA Sphere of Influence over
"Area 2" and encouraging LAFCO to amend its Resolution No. 3155 for LAFCO No. 3148
2/10/2012 Board Goal Setting Workshop: [dentifying consolidation with Zone W-1 as a
priority.



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
FOR SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

215 North “D" Street, Suite 204, San Bernardino, CA 92415-0490
(909) 383-9900 « Fax (209) 383-9901
E-mail: lafco@lafco.sbcounty.gov
www.sheiafco.org

PROPOSAL NO.: LAFCO 3148
HEARING DATE:  April 18, 2012

RESOLUTION NO. 3155

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF
SAN BERNARDINO MAKING DETERMINATIONS ON ILAFCO 3148 — A SERVICE REVIEW AND
SPHERE OF INFLUENCE UPDATE FOR THE BIGHORN-DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY
{(sphere of influence reduction by approximately 11,882 acres, expansion by a total of
approximately 8,140 acres, and affirmation of the balance of its existing sphere of influence,
as shown on the attached map).

On motion of Commissioner Bagley, duly seconded by Commissioner Coleman, and
carried, the Local Agency Formation Commission adopts the following resolution:

WHEREAS, a service review mandated by Government Code 56430 and a sphere of
influence update mandated by Government Code Section 56425 have been conducted by the Local
Agency Formation Commission of the County of San Bernardino (hereinafter referred to as “the
Commission”) in accordance with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization
Act of 2000 {(Government Code Sections 56000 et seq.); and,

WHEREAS, at the times and in the form and manner provided by law, the Executive Officer
has given notice of the public hearing by the Commission on this matter; and,

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer has reviewed available information and prepared a report
including her recommendations thereon, the filings and report and related information having been
presented to and considered by this Commission; and,

WHEREAS, a public hearing by this Commission was called for January 18, 2012 at the time
and place specified in the notice of public hearing, adoption of the resolution was continued to the
February 158, 2012 hearing at which time the Commission directed staff to conduct a community
meeting and schedule further discussion for consideration at the April 18, 2012 hearing; and,

WHEREAS, at the hearing, this Commission heard and received all oral and written protests;
the Commission considered all plans and proposed changes of organization, objections and
evidence which were made, presented, or filed; it received evidence as to whether the territory is
inhabited or uninhabited, improved or unimproved; and all persons present were given an
opportunity to hear and be heard in respect to any matter relating to the application, in evidence
presented at the hearing; and,




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

WHEREAS, at this hearing, this Commission certified that the sphere of influence update
including sphere amendments is statutorily exempt from environmental review pursuant to the
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and such exemption was adopted by
this Commission on April 18, 2012. The Commission directed its Executive Officer to file a Notice of
Exemption within five working days of its adoption; and,

WHEREAS, based on presently existing evidence, facts, and circumstances filed with the
Local Agency Formation Commission and considered by this Commission, it is determined that the
sphere of influence for the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency (hereafter shown as the "BDVWA” or
the “Agency”) shall be amended as shown on the map attached as Exhibit “A” to this resolufion,
defined as follows:

)] Reduce the Agency's existing sphere of influence to exclude Area 1 (contalning
approximately 11,882 acres);

(2) Expand the Agency’s sphere of influence to include Area 2, as modified by the
Gommission (containing approximately 8,054 acres);

(3) Expand the Agency's sphere of influence to include Areas 3a, 3b, and 3¢ (containing
a total of approximately 86 acres); and,

(4) Affirm the balance of the Agency's existing sphere of influence.

WHEREAS, the determinations required by Government Code Section 56430 and local
Gommission policy are included in the report prepared and submitted to the Commission dated
January 9, 2012 and received and filed by the Commission on January 18, 2012, a complete copy of
which is on file in the LAFCO office, The determinations of the Commission are:

1. Growth and population projections for the affected area:

The rural desert character of Homestead Valley is defined by its geographic location, the
area's desert landscape and environment, and the predominance of very low-density
residential development. Low-density residential development within the plan area is
characterized by large lots, the varied placement of homes, and open spaces around the
homes. The character of the community is further defined by the natural environment and by
the limited commercial and industrial uses. :

According to the Homestead Valley Community Plan, several issues set Homestead Vailey
apart from other desert communities, suggesting that different strategies for future growth
may be appropriate. Among these are the preservation of community character,
infrastructure, and commerce and services. As for preservation of community character,
residents are concerned with the preservation of the natural environment and their
community character amidst the pressures of growth in the plan area and surrounding desert
communities. The preservation of the community’s natural setting, small town atmosphere
and rural character becomes important not only from an environmental perspective but from
a cultural and economic paint of view. The Community Plan further states that the
Homestead Valley area will continue to experience growth as the desert region continues to
develop. The rural nature and availability of vacant land will continue to attract development
to the area. As the area develops it will be important to ensure that the rural features of the
area are preserved and that adequate services and infrastructure are provided.




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Land Ownership

Within the Agency's entire sphere, roughly 46% of the land is privately owned and the
rernainder, 54%, is public, which are devoted primarily to resource protection and
recreational use,

Land Ownership Breakdown (in Acres)
Within Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Ownership Type Boundary Sphere Total Area

{outside boundary)
Private 17,943 5,384 23,327
Public Lands ~ Federal (BLM), State, & others 9,380 18,498 27,878
Total 27,323 23,882 51,205

Land Use

Within the study area, approximately 53 percent Is designated RL (Rural Living, 2.5 acres
minimum), RL-5, and RL-40, 45 percent is Resource Conservation, and the remainder of the
land use designations comprises two percent (Special Development-Commercial,
Neighborhood Commercial, Rural Commercial, General Commercial, Service Commercial,
and Institutional). The commercial developments within the Agency are generally located
along State Route 247 and Reche Road.

General Plan Land Use Districts (In Acres)
Within Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Land Use Boundary Sphere Total Area
{outside boundary}

Homestead Valley Community Plan
Resource Conservation (HV/RG) 3,310 5,058 8,368
Rural Living (HV/RL) 20,480 1,985 22 465
HV/RL-6 2,025 2,025
HV/RL-40 320 320
Special Development (HV/SD-COM) 658 658
Neighborhood Commercial (HV/CN) 5 5
Rural Commercial (HV/CR) 222 38 260
General Commercial (HV/CG) 5 5
Service Commercial (HV/CS) 8 8
Institutional (HV/IN) 10 10

County General Plan

Resource Conservation (RC) 280 14,806 15,088
Rural Living (RL) 1,450 1,450
RL-5 545 545
Total 27,323 23,882 51,205




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Population Projections

In 2000, the population within the Agency’s boundaries was 2,297. Based on the 2010
Census, the current population for the area is 3,018. This represented an average annual
growth rate of approximately 2.8 percent within the given period.

The Community Plan population forecast is not used in this report for the Agency. [nstead,
the projected growth for the Agency’s boundaries was calculated utilizing a combination of
the growth rates identified in the Regional Council of the Southern California Association of
Governments (SCAG) Draft 2012 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Integrated Growth
Forecast, SCAG’s 2008 RTP, and the use of average annual growth rate. By 2040, the
population within the Agency’s boundaries is estimated to reach 6,154. This represents a
projected annual growth rate of approximately 2.4 percent between 2010 and 2040, which
also represents a total population increase of 49 percent from 2010.

Population Projection 2010-2040
Within Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Census Population Projection
2000 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040
2207’ 3,018° 3,069° | 3700" | 4313 4,902 5,466 6,154°

' 2000 pepulation was derived from the 2000 Census block datn for the Agency’s boundary

> 2010 population data was derived from the 2010 Census block data for the Agency’s boundary.,

1 2015 growth rate projection was adjusied to reflect the rate for the County®s unincorporated area from SCAGs 2012
RTP Revised Draft Integrated Growth Forceast using local input and latest data from the 2010 Census, the
Califernia Employment Development Department , and the California Department of Finance - {published Muay
2011)

1 2020-2035 growth rate projections were caleulated based on the growth rate identificd by SCAG’s 2008 RTP for cach of
the TAZ’s (Traffic Annlysis Zones) that corresponded to each of the Census Tracls within the Apgency’s boundary.
The growth rates for each of the TAZ’s were then used to derive the projection of the population for each of the
corresponding Census Tract numbers,

¥ 2040 projection was calculated using Average Annunl Growth Rate based on the compounded rate between 2010-2035
sinee SCAG's projections only went to 2035

Build-out

The table below provides the potential build-out within the Agency’s boundaries. This build-
out scenario takes into consideration the existing land use designations assigned for the area
and the dwelling unit densities assigned for each residential land use (densities for all
residential land uses were derived from the densities identified in the Homestead Valley
Community Plan Potential Build-Out Table).

Land Use Maximum Build-Out
Within Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Land Use Acreage Density Maximum Build-out
{D.U. Per Acre)
Resource Conservation 3,590 0.025 a0
Rural Living 20,480 0.2 4,096




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

RL-5 2,025 0.4 810
RL-40 320 0.025 8
Total Residential 26,415 ' 5,004

The population projections identified earlier indicates that the population within the
Agency’s boundaries will be 6,154 by 2040. Based on the maximum residential build-out
within the Agency's boundaries, the projected maximum population is anticipated to
reach 11,759 (at @ 2.35 persons per housshold based on the ratio identified in the
Homestead Valley Community Plan Potential Build-Out table). Likewise, based on the
projected population for 2040, it is anticipated that the number of households within the
Agency's boundaries will be 2,619 with a maximum potential build-out to reach
approximately 5,005. These imply that the study area will reach 52 percent of its
potential household and population capacity by 2040.

Population and Household Projection
Within Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Projection Maximum Ratio of 2040
2040 Build-out Projection with
Maximum
Build-out
Popuiation 6,154 11,759 0.52
Households 2,619 5,004 0.52

Present and planned capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services,
including infrastructure needs or deficiencies:

Regional Water

The Homestead community is located in the Colorado River Hydrologic Region, and is In the
South Mojave Watershed as designated by the California Department of Water Resources
(California Water Plan, Update 2009, Integrated Water Management, DWR, Bulletin 160-09,
Vol. 3, Golorado River). The community is also within the boundaries of the Mojave Water
Agency (MWA), a state water contractor.

State Water Project (SWP)

As LAFCO has stated on many occasions, water is the lifeblood for communities in the
desert regions due to its limited nature. The availability of water will ultimately determine
whether or not a community will prosper in the desert environs of San Bernardino County.
Therefore, the most significant regional issue for the Homestead community is present and
future water supply. The 2007 State Water Project Delivery Reliability Report indicates that
SWP deliveries will be impacted by two significant factors. First, it is projected that climate
change is altering hydrologic conditions in the State. Second, a ruling by the Federal Court
in December 2007 imposed interim rules to protect delta smelt which significantly affects the
SWP. Further, the Report shows, “...a continued eroding of SWP delivery reliability under
the current method of moving water through the Deita” and that “annual SWP deliveries
would decrease virtually every year in the future...” The Report assumes no changes in
conveyance of water through the Delta or in the interim rules to protect delta smelt.




RESOLUTION NO, 3155

The Department of Water Resources prepares biennial SWP water delivery reliability reports
in order to provide the public with reliability estimates for both current and projected 20 year
conditions. This is accomplished by modeling the effects of current hydrologic and SWP
facility conditions and changes that are projecied to cccur. The table below summarizes the
history of the current and future MWA contractual maximum annual amount from the SWP
and the SWP reliability factors that have been and are being used for water supply planning
purposes since 2005.

Year MWA Table A" SWP Reliability Average Annual
Annual Maximum Factor {long-term) SWP Yield (Acre-feet)
2005 75,800 7% 58,366
2007 75,800 66-69% 50,028 — 52,302
2009 75,800 61% 46,238
2010 82,800 61% 50,508
[ 20156 85,800 61% 9 52,338%
2020 89,800 681% 54,778

(1) Table A refers to the section within the MWA contract with DVWR which specifies the maximum annual
amount of water that the MWA can receive from the State Water Project.

(2) The 2008 Rellability Report estimated an average rellabllity of 60% for the SWP, but also modeled
reliability for each Ceontractor, concluding that ihe average annual supply for MWA would be 61%. The
2009 Reliabllity Report estimate Is the only known reliabliity variable at this ime and Is used for the
purposes of this discussion and for waler supply estimates in the MWA 2010 UWMP. Current court
proceedings and efforis to address issuss In the Della (supply source for the SWP) may result in future
changes to SWP supply reliability.

Source: Mojave Water Agency, 2010. Footnote (2) updated by LAFCO staff in 2011,

The 2007 Reliability Report concluded that cantractors fo the SWP could anticipate average
reliability of 66-69% through the year 2027. The range was provided to account for variable
impact associated with different conclusions about the potential effects of modeled climate
change. The average assumes that in some years contractors are likely to be allocated less
than the stated average and in some years contractors are likely to be allocated more than
the stated average.

In 2009 the DWR provided an updated reliability report incorporating new biological opinions
in place of the referenced interim rules promulgated by the Federal Court. The new
biclogical opinions were significantly more restrictive than the interim rules and conseguently
the 2009 reliability analysis indicated a reduction in reliability to 61% for long-term (2029)
conditions. MWA has subsequently acquired additional contractual amounts to SWP water,
increasing the maximum annual amount from 75,800 acre-feet to 82,800 acre-feet in 2010,
85,800 acre-feet in 2015 and 89,800 acre-feet in 2020. Considering the DWR modeling
results, the average annual yield to MWA would be 50,508 acre-feet in 2010 and 54,778
acre-feet in 2029.

Since preparation of the 2009 Reliability Report, the same Federal Court has found the new
biological opinions to be unacceptable (and inappropriately restrictive to Delta water exports)
and has ordered them to be redone. There is also a major effort underway to develop a
habitat conservation plan to address the myriad of issues impacting water supply exports
from the Delta. That effort, if accomplished in a manner consistent with the “co-equal goals”
of ecosystem restoration and water supply reliability envisioned by the State Legislature's
2009 Comprehensive Water Package, is anticipated to significantly increase reliability of the



RESOLUTION NO. 3155

SWP water supply. The eventual success and/or resulting increase to reliability are unknown
at this time; however, the outcome will eventually be reflected in the biennial DWR reliability
assessments.

MWA operates under the guidance of its Board adopted integrated regional water
management plan and is also required by State law to submit an Urban Water Management
Plan (*UWMP") to the State of California every 5 years ending in "0” and “5". The MWA
UWMP compiles information on all known water supplies and demand on a sub-regional
scale for the entire MWA. Future water supplies and demand (population growth) are also
projected for at least the ensuing 20 years. MWA adopted its 2010 UWMP in June 2011
which incorporates the most recent reliability information provided by DWR (2009), indicating
a refiability of 61% on average. Initial analysis indicates that given projected growth rates,
the modeled decrease in reliability for the SWP by DWR, and the acquisition of additional
SWP contractual amounts by MWA, there will be sufficient supply to meet anticipated
increased demands through the required 20 year planning horizon (Mojave Water Agency,
Final 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, Adopted June 2011. Also see Appendix F of the
2010 UWMP).

The figure below shows the allocation percentage that State Water Contractors were allowed
to purchase since 2000, which averages 68% over the 10 years summarized. For example,
MWA is entitled to purchase up to 82,800 acre-feet of imported water per year. For 2011,
the allocation percentage was 80% (State of California. Department of Water Resources.
“State Water Project Allocation Increased to 80 Percent", Press Release. 20 April 2011);
therefore, MWA could purchase up fo 66,240 acre-feet. MWA mitigates for this variability in
supply by utilizing the significant water storage capability within the agency ground water
basins to take delivery of SWP water when it is available. Water available from the SWP in
excess of local demand is delivered and stored in the ground water basins to be used to
meet demand during those years when the amount of water available from the SWP is less
than the annual demand.

Department of Water Resources State Water Project
Final Allocation Percentages Statewide (2002-2011)

120%
100% . 90%
80%
80% 1 70% o
80% |
60% - 50%
40% 1 3% %
0% . T T L " T T T T T T

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Year

2002 2003 2004

source: Depariment of Water Resources




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Morongo Basin Pipeline (Mojave Water Agency Improvement District M)

In 1990, the southeastern portion of the MWA's territory voted in favor of forming
Improvement District M and to incur bonded indebtedness of $86.5 million to finance the
construction costs of the Morongo Basin Pipeline. Construction on the approximately 71 mile
Marongo Pipeline began in 1992 and was completed in 1995 and serves the areas of
Johnson Valley, Joshua Tree, Landers, and Yucca Valiey. The Pipeline delivers water from
Hesperia to a five million gallon reservoir in Landers. From there, water is delivered to
percolation ponds in the Yucca Valley area that act as natural filtration systems where water
seeps back into the ground to recharge the aquifer.

The landowners of the improvement district are obligated to pay for 75% of the costs for
construction of the Pipeline, and the participating agencies are obligated to pay the
remaining 25%. The participating agencies each pay a share of the 25% as follows:

improvement District M - Participating Agency Share

Agency e Orlginal Share | Current Share
Hi-Desert Water District 59% 59%
Joshua Basin Water District 27% 27%
Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency 9% 9%
CS5A 70 Zone W-1 (Goat Mountain) 4% 1%
CSA 70 Zone W-4 (Pioneertown) 1% 0%
MWA 0% 4%

Originally, County Service Area (“CSA") 70 Zone W-1 was obligated to pay 4% and CSA 70
W-4 to pay 1%. However, in 1995, MWA acquired 3% of the rights from CSA 70 W-1 and
1% from CSA W-4. According to County Special Districts Department staff, MWA was
requested by the County Board of Supervisors to buy CSA 70 W-1 and W-4 shares due to
lack of utilization of the water. The percentage share identified for sach participating agency
also reflects the percentage of water which they are entitied. The Board of Supervisors
action relinquished its rights to purchase supplemental water from the Pipeline when they
sold the W-1 and W-4 shares.

Improvement District M has entitlement of up to one seventh of MWA's original State Water
Project water allotment of 50,800 acre-feet/year ("AFY"); this equates to 7,257 AFY (under
maximum delivery conditions the Morongo Basin Pipeline could deliver 15,000 AFY:; delivery
of the difference between the Improvement District M contracts and 15,000 would be per
MWA Ordinance 9 and the equitable policies concerning water allocation adopted by MWA
as most recently amended by MWA). The BDVWA has a nine percent share of the
Improvement District M entitlement, or 653 AFY. At the time the Morongo Basin Pipeline
agreement was executed among the participants and MWA in 1990, MWA's SWP allotment
was 50,800 AFY. Subsequently, MWA has acquired additional allotment, currently at 82,800
AFY. Discussion continues as to whether the BDVWA and others within Improvement
District M are entitled to a proportionate share of MWA’s SWP allotment above 50,800.

The chart below shows the amount of supplemental water sent through the Morongo Basin
Pipeline (Improvement District M) from 1998 to September 2010, Subsequent data is not yet
available. Currently, the Agency does not utilize State Water Project resources but utilization




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

of the Morongo Basin Pipeline is planned in the future. However, the entitlement extends
only until 2022, at which time all agencies participating in Improvement District M will have
access to supplemental water in the same manner as all other municipal water customers.

Mojave Water Agency Morongo Pipeline Deliveries

BDVWA
!mprovement | BDOVWA Share times | Improvement
District M Share SwWpP SWP District M
Year | Enfitlement {8%) | Alocafion | Allocation Delivery

1998 7,257 653 100% 653 2,121
1990 7,257 853 100% 653 2,412
2000 7,257 653 90% 588 3,788
2001 7,257 653 9% 255 2,878
2002 7,257 853 70% 457 2,320
2003] 7,257 653 90% 588 2,427
2004 7,257 653 65% 425 4,821
2005 7,257 653 90% 588 2,041
2008 7,257 653 100% 553 3,451
2007 7,257 653 80%. 382 4,779
2008 7,267 853 35% 229 3,195]
2009 7,257 653 40% 261 2,137
2010 7,257 653 50% 327 3,572
Total! 6,068 40,010

source: Depariment of Water Resources, Mojave Water Agency

units in acre-feet unless otherwise noted ) '

Year Is reported from Cotober through September

Additionally, MWA has a four percent entitlement share of the Morongo Pipeline. MWA
delivers water through the pipeline for storage in the Warren Basin (Yucca Valley area) for
potential sale at a later date. The BDVWA could purchase the water when there is not
sufficient water to deliver because of reductions to the State Water Project allocation. The
chart below shows the MWA storage from 1998 through 2009.

Year 1988 | 1989 | 2000 | 2001 | 2002 | 2063 | 2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007 2008 | 2008

Dellvery 236| 270] 144 0 0 0 0l 919] 1,216 0 0

sourca: Mejave Waler Agency
unils In acre-fest
|Data for 2008 Is through September

Bullk Hauled Water

in remote areas of the south desert, the hauling of domestic water is the sole means for
water acquisition. In a joint letter to county planning and bullding departments in 2003, the
California Department of Health Services and the California Conference of Directors of
Environmental Health specify that, “bulk hauled water does not provide the equivalent level
of public health protection nor reliability as that provided from a permanent water system or
from an approved onsite source of water supply.” This statement is based on five potential
public health risks for hauled water:



RESOLUTION NO. 3155

1. The potential for contamination exists when water is transferred from tanker trucks to
water storage tanks.

2. Storage tanks are often the source of bacterial contamination. The Agency states
that it provides bacteriological monitoring to any bulk hauler that would desire to
obtain such a service,

3. There is no assurance that licensed water haulers follow State guidelines at all times.

4. The future reliability of hauled water is susceptible to economic conditions.

5. There is generally a higher risk for contamination.

The letter further states that hauled water for domestic purposes should only be allowed to
serve existing facilities due to a loss of quantity or quality and where an approved source
cannot be acquired. A copy of this letter is on-file at the LAFCO staff office.

The County of San Bernardino recognizes the potential health hazards with hauled water.
Future development will be restricted unless there is access to an individual well or domestic
water system. Therefore, new development could not be approved without verification of
access to a domestic water system. Howaver, existing units without connection to a
domestic water system or without individual wells on their property must rely on hauled water
for domestic and other uses. County Code of San Bernardino Section 33.0623 {last
amended in 1996) under Health and Sanitation and Animal Regulations reads:

Water furnished by a domestic haufer shall not be used as a source of water by any
public water supply system unless it has been demonstrated to DEHS {Department of
Environmental Health Services) that there are no reasonable means of obtaining an
acceptable quality and quantity of groundwater, and that water treatment methods
have been approved by DEHS. Exception: During an officially declared state or local
emergency, a public water system may utilize hauled water as a temporary source of

supply.

Adherence to these parameters will limit new development within the Johnson Valiey area for
the future as it has no current mechanism for providing an organized retail water system for
water delivery. Further, a review of the Agency's water plans does not identity plans for a
water system In the Johnson Valley even though Johnson Valley is within the boundaries of
the Agency,

Waler Rates

Due to the limited size and type of outdoor landscaping that is prevalent throughout the
South Desert, the average water usage is comparatively lower than other water agencies in
San Bernardino County. A comparison of the residential water rates charged by the
agencles within the Morongo Basin is identified in the chart below. As shown in the footnotes,
some agencies receive a share of the one percent general levy property tax and/or
assessments or additional charges.

10




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Water Agency Rate Comparison {as of July 2011)
(rates measured in units, or one hundred cubic feet)

' : onthl
Water Use Fee - , Mﬂ:ﬂttmy_ iﬂ\'refégz
. ey eter | Ave
Agency I - | Charge GOSt
: Tier | Tier | Tier | Tier | (3yn (10

One | Two | Three | Four - Meter) ?,‘.'“itf.‘;f
- , ' water) -

Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency ” | $3.00 - | $27.50 | §57.50

CSA 70 Zone F {Morongo Valley) ' $4.51 | $5.02 | $5.73 - $57.26 | $102.35
CSA 70 Zone W-1 (Landers)’ $3.87 | $4.31 | $5.54 - $23.87 | %6257
CSA 70 Zone W-3 (Morongo Valley)' $3.21 | $3.57 | $3.65 - $40.84 | $72.94
CSA 70 Zone W-4 {Pioneertown) $5.86 | $7.31 | $9.88 | $10.87 $31.05 | $89.65
Golden State Water Company

{(Morengo) $2.47 - - - $28.15 | $52.85
Hi-Desert Water District ' $3.50 ! $5.69 | $6.89 | $9.08 $11.80° | $60.30
Joshua Basin Water District ™ $2.14 | $2.39 | $2.57 | $2.75 $23.82 $46.47
Twentynine Palms Water District * $2.33 - - - $11.00° | $34.30

" Receives a share of the ane percent ad valorem general tax levy
District also chargss monthly a pipeline surcharge and capital replacement charge
? District also charges a standby charge
* Charge is for 5/8" and 1" meter with 5/8" demand
® Charge is for 5/8" meter

Note: Standby charges are not included or referenced in this chart as they are not-related o active connections.

Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

For the remainder of this service review factor, cited materials include excerpts from the
Agency's narrative response to the factors for a service review, 2007 Water Master Plan,
2010 Initial Study for Water Infrastructure Restoration Program, 2011 Reche Spreading
Grounds Recharge Feasibility Report, and the Mojave Water Agency 2010 Urban Water
Management Plan. Other materials have been referenced but not cited,

Currently, the BDVWA is the sole retail water provider within the community, actively
providing retail water service via a pressurized system to the Landers and Flamingo Heights
areas. Most of the customers are residential with lots varying from 2.5 to 5 acres. Qutdoor
landscaping is mostly zeroscape requiring little, if any, water. Not all areas in the community
have direct access to a piped retail water service; therefore, it is understood that water
service to those developed properties is provided through on-site wells or through hauling of
domestic water. Specifically, the Johnson Valley area is within the Agency but does not have
a pressurized water system. In this area, bulk water is either retrieved by customers from an
Agency well or delivered by a bulk-water hauler. Althaugh local groundwater is currently the
sole source of its water supply, BDVWA holds capacity in the Morongo Pipeline and may
purchase State Water Project water from Mojave Water Agency (“MWA"), who is a contractor
with the California Department of Water Resources (‘DWR"). Currently, BDVWA does not
have the necessary infrastructure to utilize this supply.

Groundwater Basins

11



RESOLUTION NO. 3156

The BDVWA service area overlles three groundwater basins, historically identified by the
DWR as the Ames Valley, the Means Valley, and the Johnsen Valley basins. Private
indlviduals and municipal water providers pump groundwater from the Ames Valley and the
Johnson Valley basins. The Ames Valley Basin coincides with portions of the United State
Geological Survey ("USGS”) Marongo Groundwater Basin, including the Pioneertown, Pipes,
Reche, Giant Rock and Emerson Sub Basins. Most of the pumping is from the Ames Valley
Basin. County Service Area 70 Zone W-1 as well as the Hi-Desert Water District (“HDWD")
also pump groundwater from the Ames Basin, Water pumped from the Johnson Valley Basin
is pumped into a 10,000 gallon reservoir, Residents in that area recelve water using a truck
delivery service or via self-hauling.

* Ames Valley Groundwater Basin

The Department of Water Resource's Bulletin 118 (Jast updated February 2004)
describes the Ames Valley Groundwater Basin as follows:

This groundwater basin underlies Ames Valley, Homestead Valley, and Pipes
Wash in the south central San Bernardino County. The basin is bounded by
nonwater-bearing rocks of the San Bernardino Mountains on the west, of Iron
Ridge on the north, and of Hidalgo Mountain on the northeast (Rogers 1967).
The Emerson, Copper Mountain, and West Calico faults form parts of the
eastern and northern boundaries. The southern boundary and parts of the
northern and eastern boundaries lie along surface drainage divides. The
valley is drained northeastward by Pipes Wash to Emerson (dry) Lake.
Average annual precipitation ranges from 4 to 12 inches.

Natural recharge of the basin is mainly from percolation of stream flow from
the San Bernardino Mountains and precipitation to the valley floor (Mendez
and Christensen 1997; Bookman-Edmonston Engineering 1994). Percolation
of septic tank effluent from the town of Landers and surrounding communities
also contributes to recharge of groundwater. Some subsurface infiow may
come from Means Valley Groundwater Basin, and subsurface outflow
probably crosses the Emerson fault into Deadman Valley Groundwater Basin
(French 1978; Mendez and Christensen 1997).

e Means Valfey Groundwater Basin

Bulietin 118 states the principal source of recharge to the basin is likely percolation of
runoff from surrounding mountains, with a minor contribution from percolation of
precipitation to the valley floor and subsurface flow across the Johnsen Valley fault
southwest of Means Lake. Groundwater may migrate through fractures in bedrock
toward Emerson Lake as subsurface oufflow. The following description of the Means
Valley Groundwater Basin is taken from Bulletin 118:

This groundwater basin underlies Means Valley in southcentral San
Bernardino County. The basin is bounded by nonwater-bearing rocks and a
drainage divide on the north, by a drainage divide on the south, by the
Johnson Valley fault on the west, and by the Homestead Valley fault on the
east. Drainage is to Means (dry) Lake in the central part of the valley. Annual
average precipitation ranges from about 4 to 8 inches.

12




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

» Johnson Valley Groundwater Basin

The following description of the Johnson Valley Groundwater Basin is taken from
Bulletin 118.

Upper Johnson Valley Subbasin underiies the Upper Johnson Valley in the
southern Mojave Desert. The subbasin is bounded on the north by the Fry
Mountains and on all other sides principally by other unnamed crystalline
racks. The western boundary follows the Johnson Valley fault, and surface
drainage divides form parts of the southern and eastern boundaries. Upper
Johnson Valley has internal surface drainage that converges to Melville (dry)
Lake. Average annual precipitation ranges from 4 to 6 inches.

Ames Valley Basin Water Agreement

Although not a full adjudication (Adjudication is defined in the 2005 California Water Plan as
the “Act of judging or deciding by law. In the context of an adjudicated groundwater basin,
landowners or other parties have turned to the courts to settle disputes over how much
groundwater can be extracted by each party to the decision.”), the court approved Ames
Valley Basin Water Agreement is a 1991 Agreement between the Agency and HDWD. The
agreement was initiated by BDWVA due to concerns about a proposed well calied the
Section 24 Well {the location of this well is the same as the proposed Ames-Means
Recharge Project - a 160-acre government-owned parcel, APN 0629-21 1-01), sometimes
called the Mainstream Well in the Ames Valley Basin and possible export of water from that
well out of the basin. The Ames Valley Water Basin Agreement provides a partial solution to
management of the Ames Valley Basin. The agreement sets forth a lega! description of the
Ames Valley Basin that does not conform to either the DWR or USGS descriptions and refers
to the combined Ames Valley and Means Valley Basins. The basic terms of the agreement
are as follows.

1. Production from the Section 24 Well and any additional wells owned by HDWD, within
the Ames Valley Water Basin would be limited to 800 acre-feet per year.

2. The production could be increased beyond 800 acre-feet per year depending on the
needs of the properly owners in the basin by an amount not to exceed one-half of an
acre-foot per year per each new water meter installation by HDWD,

3. Water from the wells in the Ames Valley Basin would be used only within that basin.

4. Establish a monitoring program fo mitigate potential environmental damage lo the
hydrologic resources of the basin caused by the Section 24 Well,

5. An environmental review is required if criteria set forth in the agreement with respect
to water quality and groundwater level elevations are exceeded. The agreement was
amended on two separate occasions. These amendments changed the manner in
which a consultant was selected to implement the monitoring program. The terms of
the judgment were the similar to those in the agreement. Portions of the agreement
were revisited by the court at the request of HDWD who sought to expand the areas
of use of water from the Section 24 Well. The court did not rule in favor of HDWD and
the agreement remains.

13




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

At the time the Agreement was entered, the HDWD service area included areas within the
Ames Valley Basin and the Warren Valley Basin. The agreement is currently in the process
of being revised to include BDVWA, MWA, HDWD, County Service Area 70 Zone W-1
(Landers) and County Service Area 70 Zone W-4 (Pioneertown) to provide a monitoring and
management plan for operation of the Basin with the Ames Valley Recharge Project. The
revision will require the parties to enter into a Stipulation to Enter an Amended and Restated
Judgment which shall then supersede the existing 1991 judgment. When approved, this
agreement will replace the 1991 Stipulated Judgment and will be incorporated into the
groundwater monitoring program (“GWMP") discussed in further detail below. A basin-wide
GWMP will provide the necessary data for effective management into the future.
Collectively, the agreement and GWMP will provide the institutional framework for the
purchase, recharge, and recovery of imported SWP water through the Morongo Basin
Pipeline Agreement.

Current Supply and Demand

Facilities and Connections

BDVWA provides water service to customers in portions of Flamingo Heights, Landers, and
Johnson Valley. The existing BDVWA infrastructure consists of eight wells, nine reservoirs
located in seven active pressure zones, booster pumps, 14 pressure reducing valves, and
108 miles of pipelines.

As of June 2011, there are eight wells all of which are active, Well 4 is in inactive status with
the Department of Public Health. Wells 2 and 4 share a single power supply iimiting
operation to one well at any given time. The same case exists with Wells 6 and 7. The wells
produce on average about 500 gallons per minute totaling over 1.8 million cubic feet per day.
This equates to roughly 500 acre-feet annually. Two of the wells in the northern porticn of
the Agency (Bighorn portion of the Agency) are for bulk service (via four separate hauling
stations) and produce roughiy 66,000 cubic feet, or roughly five percent of all water
consumed.

BDVWA has more than 108 miles of pipe within its system. The majority of its pipeline is 6-
inch (71%)} and 8-inch (22%) mains. BDVWA also has minor amounts of 40-inch, 12-inch
and 20-inch mains. All of the pipes are asbestos cement and polyvinyl chioride with the
exception of the 20-inch pipe which is mortar lined and cement coated steel pipe. All three of
these types of pipe meet American Water Warks Association standards. In the past, records
were not kept of length and date of installation of each type of pipe. Thus, the Agency is
unable to define the exact age, although the system in general is approximately 30 years old.
Most of the pipe however is thought to be asbestos cement.

Pressure reducing valves ("PRVs") are generally used to transfer water from one pressure
zone to anather. In areas of substantial elevation, PRVs are used to provide reasonable
pressure in lower lying areas where pressure would otherwise be too high. BDVWA has
fourteen PRVs that take water from a higher pressure zone and deliver it to a lower pressure
zone. All of the valves are either 8-inch or 6-inch valves. Some of the pressure reducing
valves are equipped with a bypass which allows smaller amounts of water to flow into the
lower pressure zone during times of minimal use. PRV bypasses are also necessary to
maintain pressure during repair of the primary reducing valve.

14




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

The Agency's intertie with Hi-Desert Water District (‘HDWD") is currently disconnected and
isolated from cross-connection. According to the Agency, the pump was removed many
years ago; however, with minimal effort a connection could be made whereby the Agency
could receive water via gravity flow from HDWD. More work would be needed for the
Agency to pump water into HDWD's system. The two agencies are actively seeking a new,
permanent emergency intertie solution. In addition, the Agency has the ability to "high line" a
connection between fire hydrants to create an emergency intertie with CSA 70 Zone W-1.

Many of the Agency’s fire hydrants do not produce sufficient flow and pressure to meet the
current fire flow standard of 1,000 gallons per minute with a residual pressure of 20 pounds
per square inch. This fire flow standard is identified in the County Development Code.

Connections and Water Use

Historic Annual Use
Customers Recorded  :Production Production
Calendar '{active ‘Water Sales per Customer;per Customer
Year  meters) (acre-feet) (af/cust) {cef/ cust)
2000. 1,533 488 0.32 139
2001 1,529 429 0.28 122
2002 1,532 527 0.34 150
2003. 1,532 488 0.32 139
2004 1,522 519’ 0.34 149
2005 1,549, 462. 0.30 130
2006 1,584 508, 0.32 140
2007 1,566 504. 032 140
2008; 1,554 491, 0.32, 138
2009, 1,592 452 0.28 124
2010, 1,554 411 026 115
Average | 1,550 480; 031, 135

Since at least 2000, the Agency has provided water service via pipeline to about 1,550
metered connections, most of which are residential consumers. The area served in this
manner is approximately 18,720 acres (68% of the Agency's area). In looking at the average
use in the chart above, total water use and production per customer has decreased each
year since 2006. According to the Agency, the reason for less water production is due to the
area’'s water conservation efforts. Currently, the Agency has approximately 400 inactive
meters.

The Agency's rate structure is based upon a single rate for water use — it does not utilize
tiered rates. Tiered rates, in which customers are charged different rates according to the
amount of water used, are utilized as an incentive for conservation. The Agency has stated
that until the old and under-reported meters are replaced, consumption charges cannot be
addressed.

15




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Johnson Valley

The entire area known as Johnson Valley does not have a pressurized water system. The
Agency states that it has approached the Johnson Valley community regarding the potential
for a future water system and that the community has responded in general that the
implementation of a water system would be too costly in addition to fostering development.
Population densities are so low that there are not enough customers to financlally support
the construction of a water system,

Johnson Valley Water Hauling Station

BDVWA operates and maintains four bulk water hauling stations, Three are
connected to the pressurized water systems constructed by the predecessor
agencies Bighorn Mountains Water Agency and Desert View Water District. One of
the bulk hauling stations connected to the pressurized system is located on the east
end of Johnson Valley at Bodick Rd. and Kickapoo Trail. Residents of the Johnson
Valley community utilize this facility as well as others who utilize the Well No. 10
facility.

The fourth Is a "standalone" water system located in Johnson Valley located within
the boundaries of the predecessor Bigharn Mountains Water Agency. Johnson
Valley has a standalone water hauling station supplied by a single groundwater well
and a 10,000 gallon storage reservair. The single well in the community was
constructed from grant funding obtained by the County and the Agency now operates
this well. This site serves approximately 41 residential self-hauling customers and
approximately four commercial {licensed and unlicensed) water hauling customers
who deliver water to an unknown number of customers. The Agency has no current
plans to extend pipeline service to the Johnson Valley area. Population densities are
so low that there are not enough customers to financially support the construction of a
water line and appetent water system. The Agency states that redundancy in the
Johnson Valley bulk system is needed and is seeking financial participation for an
existing U.S. EPA STAG grant to conduct a hydro-geologic investigation in Johnson
Valley to determine where a new well should be located.

The Agency has provided the following explanation of its actions regarding bringing a
retail water system to Johnson Valley:

Altempts to bring a pressurized water system were first evaluated in 1967 by
Albert A. Webb & Assoc. on behalf of the proposed Johnson Valley County
Water District Committee. The JV County Water District was never formed
and eventually JV became part of the Bighorn Mountains Water Agency
service area, Since that time the Agency has actively engaged in its mission
to provide water to its service area. The following summarizes activilies to
date;

> In 1994, a Community Development Block Grant was awarded and the
Agency executed a Maintenance and Operations Agreement (No, 94-
340) for the construction of a community well in JV. In 1995, an
Addendum was issued fo the original Agreement and the County
Special Districts Department began consiruction of the welf in 1996
and Natice of Completion was filed in 1998. The Agency committed

16




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

contractually to operation and maintenance of the well for 10 years
from the Notice of Completion. The ten year commitment has expired
but the Agency continues to maintain Well Na. 10.

» In 2005, an EPA State and Tribal Assistance Grant was awarded
which provided for 55% funding for Johnson Valley Hydrologic
Investigation ("JVHY’). The basis for the award was to perform
additional studies to betler define the characteristics of the basin for
the benefit of the region. This project includes the construction of an 8-
inch diameter test well.

» In April 2007, the Agency received the final report entitled, Basin
Conceptual Model and Assessment of Water Supply and Demand for
the Ames Valley, Johnson Valley and Means Valley Groundwater
Basins.

> In 2008, the Agency received federal authorization under the Water
Resources Development Act (WRDA) for $15 million to assist in the
construction of a water system in JV and to interconnect it with the
existing B-zone of the Agency.

» In December 2010, the Board of Directors authorized staff to proceed
with completion of the JVHI using the EPA Grant funds remaining.

> In April 2011, Board of Directors authorized staff to actively seek a
willing property seller for the location of the JVHI test well,

» In July 2011, Board authorizes purchase of 5-acres of real property for
locating the JVHI test well.

» In November 2011, Board of Directors authorizes the execution of a
Professional Services Agreement with Daniel B. Stephens &
Assaociates for the completion of the JVHI test well, The contract total is
$171,000 with EPA providing matching grant funds.

The BDVWA does not consider hauled water to be an enterprise function of the
Agency in the classic sense because it is obligated to operate under the conditions of
the consolidation with respect to segregation of funds (Section 33305 of the Water
Code, known and cited as the Desert View Water District-Bighorn Mountains Water
Agency Consolidation Law). However, the Agency is interested in the overall cost to
operate and maintain the bulk system to ensure rates and charges are fair and
equitable across the Agency. Therefore, the Agency has set up subaccounts in the
general ledger to frack revenue from bulk water sales and direct expenses to the Bulk
system. According to the Agency, in the future this procedure will add labor efforts
and Agency overhead as well.

As mentioned, the lack of a pressurized water system results in either on-site wells or
water hauling from the single well operated by the Agency. Adherence to the
parameters outlined in the County Development Code will limit new development
within the Johnson Valley area for the future as it has no current mechanism for
providing an organized retail system for water defivery, Further, a review of the

17




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Agency’s cuirent water plans does not identity plans for a water system in the
Johnson Valley even though Johnson Valley is within the boundaries of the Agency.

In February 2010, the Agency conducted a survey regarding community desires for
water supply. The survey was mailed to all property owners in Tax Rate Areas 88015,
94036 and 94043. Three primary questions were asked and they were directed at
any interest in pressurized water, an Interest in a redundant bulk water supply, or a
"do nothing" option. With a 30% return rate approximately 60% of the respondents
expressed a desire for pressurized water service. The primary written comment was
a question of cost, At two public hearings, the Agency has presented a task list for
developing and completing a pressurized water system in JV as well as outlining
parcel identities, basic facilities needed and other features.

Johnson Valley Improvement Association

The Johnson Valley Improvement Association ("JVIA") operates a food facility at its
community center. The JVIA community center was notified by the County
Department of Public Health (*“DPH") that it was not meeting the requirements of a
Transient Non-Community Water System. In letters from the DPH to the JVIA from
February 2011 and September 2011, the DPH states that hauled water is not a viable
potable source for a food facility, and that the water system must be connected to an
approved well.

As part of the 2011-12 budget process, the Board of Supervisors set aside an
allocation for the five supervisorial districts to finance unbudgeted priority policy
needs as identified by the Board throughout the fiscal year. One such project
identified by the Third District involves providing financial assistance o JVIA to assist
in funding for drilling and installation of a water well, tanks and storage, hood fire
suppression system, kitchen equipment to include freezer and/or refrigerator, permits
and fees for the Community Center. The Community Center and adjacent County
Fire Station does not have access to retail water lines and has to rely on hauled
water. In October 2011, the County and the JVIA entered into a cantract for the
distribution and use of the funds.

The contract between the County and the JVIA reads that the funds would assist the
Johnson Valley Gommunity Center to become more self-sufficient; and assist the
local Fire Station by acquiring, drilling and installing a water well, tanks and storage, a
hood fire suppression system, and kitchen equipment to be used in those two
facilities. The estimated cost for the project total was $82,000 and this amount was
provided to the JVIA by the County. According to the contract, all funds provided
under this contract must only be spent on the acquisition, installation and completion
of the project to provide water to the Community Center and Fire Station. In the
event there are funds remaining after completion of the project, the JVIA may use
remaining funds to purchase a generator, kitchen upgrades and other kitchen
equipment. The JVIA has until October 1, 2012 to complete the project.

The Agency states that it informally attempted to assist the JVIA in finding an
acceptable resolution to this issue, such as reverse osmosis treatment of the bulk
water entering the facility, but the JVIA Board of Directors declined to formally seek
the assistance from the Agency. The Agency has identified that is does not have
issue with the JVIA having its own well, as it is entitled to its overlying groundwater

18




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

rights, for its on-site water needs. The Agency has, however, expressed concern that
the water produced from the well could be utilized off-site, as the JVIA is not a
licensed public or private water purveyor (the only licensed retail water purveyor
overlaying the Johnson Valley is the Agency). To allay these concerns, the contract
includes the following, “Water from the well which constitutes the project may only be
used for the Community Center's and Fire Station's internal use; water from the well
may not be circulated or distributed for use in any manner outside the Community
Center and Fire Station except in the event of an-emergency." Further, Section 49 of
the Agency's Special Act prohibits the establishment of a competing water provider
within its boundaries without the consent of the Agency. Therefore, the exportation of
water from the parcel would be in violation of the contract and Bighorn-Desert View
Water Agency Law,

At first glance, this may seem to be a governmental inefficiency ~ the County
assisting in the acquisition of a local water source when the area is already under the
retail water responsibility of the Agency. However, the contracted use of the water is
for on-site purposes and is not intended as a source for off-site use such as water
hauling. Further, this method serves the JVIA as property owner and community
center patrons financially best because the drilling of the well is funded with a County
grant and not paid by the property owners.

As mentioned above, the Johnson Valley community in general has expressed
interest in a pressurized water system but that the implementation of a water system
would be too costly. Population densities are so low that there are not enough
customers to financially support the construction of a water system.

County Service Area 70 Zone W-1

In 1995 the Agency submitted a proposal to detach approximately eight square miles from its
boundaries in the Landers area (LAFCO 2792) constitufing the territory of CSA 70 W-1.
Since the formation of CSA 70 W-1, there were a number of disputes between the residents
served by CSA 70 W-1 and those served by the Agency. LAFCO 2792 was a means of
resolving these periodic disputes. The justification for the application was that residents of
CS8A 70 W-1 received no specific benefits from the Agency but that CSA 70 W-1 residents
voted on the Agency’s ballot measures, affected Agency board decisions, and the area could
have representation on the Bighorn board, The Commission approved the proposal because
it eliminated an overlap of similar-purpose agencies and could possibly lead to a less '
contentious relationship between the residents of the two agencies.

However, BDVWA was best suited to continue providing retail water to approximately 17
customers within the boundaries of CSA 70 W-1 because the CSA 70 W-1 system for that
area deteriorated and could not provide adequate water service and pressure. The
arrangement for this service is a contract between the Agency and the County (as the
governing body for CSA 70 W-1) signed in December 1897, County Contract No. 97-1059,
for the purpose of providing water service to specific properties located within the CSA 70 W-
1 service area. At this time, BDVWA does not charge a special rate to these customers that
are outside of the Agency's boundaries,

19




RESOLUTION NO. 31556

Future Supply and Demand

According to the MWA 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, the local groundwater supply
available to BDVWA is estimated to be 500 acre-feet. It is estimated that during the current
planning horizon the population could increase by 49 percent. BDVWA will need between
749 and 829 acre-feet per year in order to supply its current and future customers (shown in
first figure below taken from BDVWA 2007 Master Plan). The MWA 2010 UWMP further
states that BDVWA will need facilities to produce about 2,388 gallons per minute to meet the
maximum day plus-fire flow. Looking at the second figure below taken from the MWA 2010
UWMP indicates that the Ames Valley groundwater basin, where most of the pumping
occurs, should have a safe yield of 800 acre-feet/year in normal and dry years.

Table 2.6
Present antd Future Waler Requirements Without Section 35

AU N

"~ Yaar, T 208 2010 2016 2020 2025
Mumbarof Gnmadloqs 1,602 1,742 1,842 2,142 2,342
Annuaﬂ Raqmrgmarrt(nﬂyr) 508 557 a21 695 74
Averago De(gpen | o4 - 348 385 428 | 465
Waximum Day (g} | 847 B33 1,040 1147 1 1254
. Péut-'lﬁﬁr;hﬁiﬁ)" S L 1,403 1,664 1838 | 2007
' MoshimDay.: 1,847 1.0% 2,040 2,147 2264
Hus Fire Flw{mm}
TABLE 3-11
MORONGO BASINMOHNSON VALLEY AREA GROUNDWATER BASINS
SUPPLY RELIABILITY
Single-Dry Water Multiple Dry Water
Normal Year'™ Year Year
Anticipated Supply {afy) {afy) {afy)

Redions
Ames Valley™ 900 900 900
Johnson Valley™ 900 900 900
Means Vallay™® 20 20 20
Capper Mountain
ValleytJoshua Tree' 200 200 200
Warren Vailey™ 100 100 100

Total 2,120 2,120 2,120

Noles:

(a) Toavaid double counting with MWA's demand foracast model which includes return flows from septic lanks, this
normal year has heen calculated as the safe or psrennial yiald of the hasin and does not include return ﬂuwa in
the safse yleld calculation.

(b} Todd Enginears is compleling a "Hydrogeologic Feasihillty Study and Groundwater Management Plan for the
Ames/Reche Praject” for the Bighom Desert View Watar Agency, in 2011, that will hetter define the Amas Valley
perennial yield. The parential yleld of 800 afy shown Above represents subsurface inflow/recharge lo the region
only and no ratum flows are included,

(c} Source:"Basih Conceplual Mode! and Assessment of Water Supply and Demand for the Amas Valley, Johnson
Vailay, and Means Valley Groundwater Basing”, April 2007, Kennedy/Jenks/Todd. Tables in ES.

(d) USGS Nishikawa, Izbicki el al,, 2004,

(e) USGS Nishikawa, Dansmore et al., 2003,

20




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

In April 2007, BDVWA adopted the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency Water System
Master Plan ("WSMP"). The master plan identified the following deficiencies in the existing
infrastructure; heavy rellance on 8-inch and 8-inch water mains which do not provide
adequate fire flow; inability of most reservoirs to refill overnight after a 500-gallons-per-
minute (gpm) fire; need for spreading grounds for groundwater storage and recovery; a
groundwater management plan and the inefficient operation of portions of the system. Once
the deficiencies were identified, the Agency prepared the Bighorn-Desert View

Water Agency Water Infrastructure Restoration Program (“WIRP"). The WIRP outlines
specific system improvements fo remediate these deficiencies.

Two WIRP projects that are near completion include a Groundwater Management Plan
("GWMP?) and the Ames Valley Recharge Project. Local groundwater is currently the sole
source of its water supply, but BDVWA has annual nine percent capacity from the Morongo
Basin Pipeline and may purchase State Water Project ("SWP") water from MWA. Although
the infrastructure needed to defiver SWP water to the Ames Valley region already exists,
additional facilities are needed to convey imported SWP water to spreading grounds for
recharge, storage, and subsequent recovery. A Feasibility Study, including a groundwater
model, is scheduled for completion in 2012 which will document the ability fo store and
recover SWP water in the basin. This document will also outline the ability of water to be
routed to Pioneertown {(CSA 70/W-4) enabling the area to supplement its groundwater

supply.

BDVWA is the Lead Agency for the WIRP and the GWMP, but the implementation also
includes other participating agencies. MWA is a financial participant, while Hi-Desert Water
District and County Service Area 70 are cooperative partners who will benefit through
participation in the groundwater storage and recovery program. The GWMP will address the
purchase of SWP water for recharge and pumping restrictions in the event that overdraft
conditions are not controlled.

Amaes Valley Recharge Project

The proposed Ames Valley Recharge Project will deliver SWP water to the Ames Valley for
recharge at the Pipes Wash Spreading Grounds to mitigate historical overdraft conditions in
the Region. This project was originally identified as the Ames/Means Valley Recharge Project
in the MWA 2004 Regional Water Management Plan, but since recharge is occurring only in
the Ames Valley, it is also referred to as the Ames Valley (or Reche) Recharge Project. This
report will refer to it as the Ames Valley Recharge Project. The recharge project will serve
water agencies using groundwater in the basin including BDVWA, HDWD, and CSA 70
{through its zones W-1 and W-4). BDVWA, in cooperation with MWA, is implementing the
project, which consists of a feasibility study, approximately 0.75 miles of conveyance pipeline
to connect to the Morongo Basin Pipeline, recharge to the Pipes Wash, and the installation of
monitoring wells. The initial recharge capacity is planned at 1,500 AFY,

The project envisions the banking of water from the State Water Project. Each participating
entity would accrue water in a water storage account. The water would be purchased, and
percolated into the groundwater basin. There would be no restrictions on the use of that
water and inter-entity transfers could occur as well. This project is intended to mitigate
impacts from over pumping of the Ames Valley Basin, provide for beneficial use of water and

21




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

insure the conjunctive use of local groundwater and imported water from the State Water
Project.

The proposed project will utilize an Environmental Protection Agency State and Tribal
Assistance Grant (grant) to complete tasks associated with environmental proceedings for
the WIRP and the Ames Valley recharge basin. Additionally, the Agency and MWA have
executed a memorandum of understanding to secure the 45% matching funds for the
remainder of the grant as well as MWA pledging up to $1 million to construct the project.
According to the Agency, at this time the project is expected to be operational by July 2012.

Financial ability of agencies to provide services:

The Commission reviewed the Agency's budgets and audits, State Controller reports for
special districts, and County filing records. The first three sections of this determination
review activities that relate to the two predecessor districts. The remaining sections review

the financial ability and requirements of the Agency.

Net Assetfs and Property Tax Assessments

According to the Agency's financial statements, the bond resolutions of the Agency and
those of its predecessor districts contain provisions that require the tracking of certain
operational funds with respect to the geographical areas of the two predecessor districts.
The following is a description of this matter taken from the FY 2009-10 financial statements.

Prior to fiscal year 2010, the Agency took the position that properly tax assessments
associated with each predecessor district were restricted solely for the payment of
principal and interest associated with the debt of that predecessor district.

However, legal research conducted in fiscal year 2010, disclosed the following:

Section 9 of the Resolution No. 174 of the Bighorn Mountains Water Agency dated
June 21, 1977 states: "The Board of Directors, so far as practicable, shall fix such
rate or rates for water in improvement District No. 1 as will result in revenues which
will pay the operaling expenses of the improvement district, which provide for the
operating expenses of the improvement districl, provide for repairs and depreciation
of works, provide a reasonable surplus for improvements, extensions, and
enlargements, pay the inferest on the bonded debf, and provide a sinking or other
fund for the payment of the principal of such debt as it may become due. If the
revenues of the improvement district will be inadequate for any cause to pay the
expenses set forth above, the Agency must provide for the levy and collection of a tax
sufficient to raise the amount of money determined by such Board of Directors to be
necessary for the purpose of paying such charges and expenses as sel forth above
and the principal and the interest on the bonds as the same become due.”

Similarly, Section 5.11 of Resolution No. 304 of the Desert View Water District

pravides that revenues of the Agency will be used fo pay "any reasonable and
necessary maintenance and operation costs of the Enterprise.

22




RESOLUTION NO. 3165

Section 33305 of the Desert View Water District-Bighorn Mountains Water Agency
Consolidation Law and Section 31012 of the County Water District Law provide as
follows:

a) All funds derived from the operation of the former district system shall be
separately accounted for and used exclusively for the purposes of
maintenance, operation, betterments, and bond debt service of the acquired
system.

b} No funds derived from the former district system shall be used for any other
such purpose until afl debt of that former system has been paid in full or until a
former system has authorized such other expenditures.

The above restrictions remain in effect untif a vote of the eleclorate of each
predecessor district authorizes differently.

Based on the language above, legal counsel has concluded that all revenues (not just
property tax levies) of each predecessor district are restricted for the expenditures of
that district. It was also determined that qualified uses of such restricted revenues
include the operating expenses (not just principal and interest payments) associated
with that district.

As of June 30, 2011, the portions of net assels associated with this restriction are as
follows:

Bighorn Mountains Water Agency (“Bighorn™):

Invested in capltal assets, net of related debt $ 2,302,548
Resouyces restricied for Bighorn (182.214)
Total Bighorn Mountains Water Agency $ 2,120,334

Desert View Waler Dislrict ("Desert View™)

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,028,625
Resources resirictecd for Dosert View 1,164,613
Total Desert View Waler District $ 2,193,238

LAFCO Resolution No. 2255, approving the consolidation of the two predecessor agencies,
included a condition of approval that required the indebtedness of each district remain the
legal obligation of only the lands and areas which incurred such indebtedness, and that
improvement districts of each entity shall be the improvement districts of the consolidated
agency. Additionally, LAFCO's review of the legislation allowing for the

consolidation identifies specific reference regarding the use of the revenues from the
predecessor districts and identifies that it can only be changed when “until a former system
has authorized such other expenditures”. That would mean that the funds from the former
districts would have to be used within the former territory and separately

accounted. Whereas the separation may be inefficient, the law requires it until the Agency
takes the maiters to the voters.

23




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

The Agency has identified to LAFCO that it acquired new legal counse! since the completion
of the FY 2009-10 audit, and the legal counsel is currently reviewing this matter. Questions
at this time generally revolve around how the Agency should operate its finances. Would
keeping the separate books increase expenses as the staff workload and operational
activities are tracked and then split accordingly? Would this lead to a different rate structure
with a single administration operating and tracking essentially two different systems? At this
time, the Agency is not taking any action until a proper analysis can be undertaken. The
Commission determines that the Agency shall provide LAFCO with its determinations on
these matters.

Long-Term Debt

The Agency is presently repaying two bond issues: (1) the 1979 Bighorn Mountains

Water Agency General Obligation Bonds; and (2) the 1980 Desert View Water District
Revenue Bonds. Additionally, the Agency has also entered into an agreement with Mojave
Water Agency for Construction, Operation and Financing of the Morongo Basin Pipeline
Project. Each of these bond issues and the agreement with Mojave Water Agency includes
a series of covenants to which the Agency, or its predecessors, has agreed. One of the
covenants in each issue is that the Agency will, at a minimum set its rates in a manner to
provide sufficient revenue to cover operating costs, pay the principal and interest due on the
bond installments, pay the annual payment required by the agreement with Mojave Water
Agency, and have a specified coverage. The 1980 Desert View bonds have a coverage
requirement of 20% over the annual principal and interest payment, while the agreement with
Mojave Water Agency requires additional coverage of 25% over the annual principal and
interest payment.

(4 Long-tern debt

Bonds Payable:
June 30, 2011
General obligation bonds:
Original issue $1,875,000, 5%, maturing in 2019;
secured by tax levy revenues $ 702,000

Waler revenue bonds:
Original issue $700,000, 5%, maturing in 2019,
secured by a pledge of all revenues 286,977

improvement District 71-2 bonds:
Original issued $275,000; 7%; matured Tuly 2,

1988 2,000
Total bonds payable 990,971
Less portion due within one year (100,000)

890,977

24




RESCLUTION NO. 3155

For the year ended June 30, 2010, the aggregate debt service coverage of the Agency was
approximately 77%. Future debt service of the Agency through 2019 is $1,085,977.

The Agency expects debt service coverage to be comparable to that of the current year
throughout the period to which the coverage requirement applies.

Future long-term debt matsrities are as follows;
Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Water Revenue Bonds
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 74,000 35,100 26,000 14,530
2013 77,000 31,400 28,000 13,250
2014 81,000 27,550 29,000 11,850
2015 85,000 23,500 31,000 10,400
2016 89,000 19,250 32,0600 8,850
2017 94,000 14,800 34,000 7,250
2018 98,000 10,100 35,000 5,550
2019 104,000 5,200 37,000 3,800
2020 - - 34.977 1,950
Total 702,000 166,900 286,977 77.430

The Pledge of Revenues and Funds of the 1980 Desert View Water District Revenue Bonds
(the "pledge”) requires that a Reserve Fund be established to further secure the payment of
the principal of and interest on those bonds. Pursuant to the pledge, the balance of this
Reserve Fund is to be maintained at the average of all future payments. As of June 30,
2011, the Agency has sufficient reserves to meet this requirement.

Tax Rate Areas

The State Board of Equalization (BOE) identifies five different taxing categories for the
Agency:

Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency — this represents all of the 13 tax rate areas
(TRAs) of the Agency. The Agency is assigned to receive a share of the one percent
general ad valorem property tax levy from each parcel within its boundaries. The
County classifies this tax share as GA01. The Agency does not receive a share of
the one percent general levy from one TRA since it was annexed to the Agency post-
Prop. 13 (there was no concurrent detachment from another agency so there was no
property tax transfer). The average share to the Agency from GAO1 is 3.6% of the
general levy.

Bighorn-Desert View, 1874 Anx, (BLO} — This territory was annexed into the Agency
in 1974 (pre-Prop 13) and was assigned a separate TRA by the BOE at that time as a
result of the annexation. [t appears that there is no need for a separate category.
Therefore, the Agency can request that the County remove this separate category in
order to clean up the tax rolls.

25




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

» Bighorn-Desert View, Imp. 01 — The voters within this territory approved a bond
proposition to "issue general obligation bonds for its Improvement District 1 for
$2,500,000 for the purpose of acquisition/ construction/ completion or repair of a
waterworks system ... for the benefit of Improvement District 1 (Resolution No, 121
adopted June 21, 1977). County Assessor records indicate that the additional tax
levy to pay the debt did not begin until FY 1978-79. The bonds are scheduled to
mature in 2019,

» Bighorn-Desert View, Imp. A — There are no records available as to the purpose of
improvement District A. In FY 1977-78 (pre-Prop 13) Bighorn Mountains Water
Agency levied a tax for Improvement District A. This was converted as a separate
share of the one percent ad valorem in FY 1978-79 (post-Prop.13). Therefore, the
Agency receives two shares of the one percent general property tax levy from those
within this territory (comprising only one, aithough large, TRA). The County classifies
this second tax share as GAO2. The average share to the Agency from GAO1 is 3.6%
of the general levy, and the share to the Agency from GADZ2 is 10.3%. Roughly 31%
of the assessed valuation of the Agency comes from this TRA. Therefore, this
second share of the general levy generates significant additional revenue for the
Agency.

s Bighorn-Desert View, Imp. B. In 1981, Agency Resolution 200 formed Improvement
District B to finance an engineering study for a domestic water system. |t Is believed
that voter approval of the tax to pay for the study raised $50,000. There is no current
additional tax associated with for these three TRAs. It is clear that the use for this
improvement district Is extinguished, Therefore, the Agency can request that the
County remove this separate category in order to clean up the tax rolls.

Net Assets and Fund Balances

in reviewing the Agency’s financial documents, net assets have increased by 22% since FY
2006-07 as shown on the chart below., As of June 30, 2010, the Agency had $4.3 million in
net assets. Not including capital assets value and debt, the Agency had roughly $982,399 in
restricted funds. Of concern is the lack of any unrestricted assets, which for a water agency
can provide for unanticipated ocecurrences.

2006-07 | 2007-08 | 2008-09 | 200910 | 2010-11
Net Assets
Invested in capital assels —
net of related debt 2,619,161 | 2,816,659 | 2,546,637 | 3,087,501 | 3,311,173
Restricted 442,820 0 940,679 766,463 982,369
Unrestricted 403,128 423,169 0 0 0
Total Net Assets $3,537,109 | $3,269,728 | $3,487,316 | $3,853,964 | $4,313,572

Considering net assets does not indicate if an agency has enough fund balance to operate
short and long-term operations. The chart below shows cash flow activities for the past five
fiscal years. Buring this time, the decline and rise of total cash flow corresponded with the
receipt of grants, increase in water rates, improvements, and decline and increase of water
sales. For FY 2008-09, four substantial reasons contributed to the slowing of losses: water

26




RESOCLUTION NO. 3155

rate increases, identifying customer accounts that were not being charged the basic
connection fee, reduction in staff, and additional reductions in expenses.

For FY 2009-10, the increase is generally attributed to a $105,324 increase in basic
surcharge revenue due fo identification of accounts that had not been paying (first full year),
and significant revenue in form of an EPA grant for the Ames Valley Recharge Project
($232,343 earned in 2010 for costs incurred through the fiscal year).

2006-07 | 2007-08 | 2008-09 | 2009-10 | 2010-11
NET CASH FLOW FROM;
Operating Activities $137,223 | $(112,047) | _$19,735 | $245,237 | $79,950
Non-capital Financing 88,604 | 108,998 | 113,960 | 113,732 | 95,783
Capital & Related Financing (368,440 | (291,028) | (211,002) | (48,298) | (121,464)
Investing 43,371 28,175 9,537 4,234 3,549
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) | (99,251) | (265,902) | (68,670) | 314,905 | 57,818
Total Cash Flow 724,068 | 458,166 | 309,496 | 704,401 | 762,219

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operational Revenues (water sales) totaling over $1.1 million comprise the majority of the
Agency's revenue. Roughly a similar amount is spent on Operating Expenses (operations
and maintenance, labor, and depreciation). For FY 2008-09 and FY 2009-10, Operating
Expenses exceeded Operational Revenues by two percent, an amount not statistically
significant. For FY 2009-10, the Agency experienced an increase in basic surcharge
revenue by $105,324 due to identification of accounts that had not been paying. Without this
revenue, Operating Loss would have been greater. However, for FY 2010-11 Operating
Expenses exceeded Operating Revenues by eight percent, The primary reasons for the net
operating loss are due to a reduction in water sales in combination with an increase in
general and administrative expenses.

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses
1. Tax Levy: Property Tax

Making up the operating loss and paying for debt and other expenses is primarily
through the receipt of a share of the one percent general ad valorem property tax levy
(the Agency's financial statements classify the share of the 1% general levy as a part
of “Tex Levy" under Non-Operating Revenue), However, the budgets separately
identify the share of the 1% general levy under Operating Revenue, roughly $104,000
per year.

in 1977-78, before Proposition 13, the Agency levied the following taxes, as identified
in the County's 1977-78 tax rate book:

Bighom Mountains {General Levy) $0.0000
Bighorn Mountains (Improvement A) $1.0000
Desert View (General Levy) $0.5285
Desert View (Bond, Land Only) $3.50086

27




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Following Proposition 13, the Legislature enacted statutes to implement its
provisions. Under these statutes, a local government’s share of the one percent
general property tax levy was based on the property tax rate and any tax levied for
bond debt going to that local government before Proposition 13 in relation to other
agencies. The debt for Improvement District A has been retired and is not shown in
the County Tax Rate book. LAFCO understands that the Agency's FY 1977-78
property tax rate and the tax rate for Improvement District A were converted into the
Agency's share of the one percent general levy.

The FY 2010-11 County Tax Rate book identifles that the Agency receives a share of
the one percent general tax levy and levies a tax for Improvement District 1 at a rate
of $0.2399 per $100 of assessed valuation. The bond for Improvement District A has
been retired and is not shown in the County Tax Rate book. However, FY 2009-10
was the first year within the past five years that experienced a decline in property tax
revenues, which continued for FY 2010-11. This overall trend correlates with the
stable number of active water meters during this time period.

Foreclosure Activity

Foreclosure activity has affected the nation in general and the Homestead Valley is
no exception. The County of San Bernardino Assessor's Office has identified that
221 housing units have been foreclosed from 1994 to 2010 for the areas identified as
Flamingo Heights, Landers, and Johnson Valley. From 2004 to 2006 the area had
hine foreclosures. The number rose sharply to 26 in 2007 and escalated to 58, 60,
and 68 for the next three years.

For the purposes of generally representing the extent of the foreclosure activity,
LAFCO identifies that there are 2,479 total housing units within the Agency. The
foreclosure of 221 homes represents 9% of the household units within the Agency
have been in foreclosure since 2004. Even with the current economic conditions, the
long-term population trend remains — the Agency is projected to experience 104%
growth through 2040.

Real property values have declined as a result of foreclosures and short-sale activity
coupled with property owner requests for temporary reductions in assessed valuation
under Proposition 8 have resulted in a correspending reduction in ad vaicrem
property tax revenues. These factors have been anticipated by the Agency in its
budgets.

. Tax Levy: Bighorn Mountains service area - Improvement District 1

Those within the Bighorn Mountains Improvement District 1 ("BH ID 1") pay an
assessment to generate revenue for the annual bond payment and a
repair/refurbishment fund to maintain the BH ID 1 water system which was
constructed with a fixed interest rate, forty-year general obligation bond (secured by
tax levy revenues), purchased through the Farmers Home Administration (FHA).

According to the Agency's resolutions that set this tax, if the revenues of the agency
or any improvement district are Inadequate to pay the operating expenses of the
agency, provide for repairs and depreciation, and to meet all obligations of the
agency, then the Agency must provide for a levy to raise the amount of money

28



RESOLUTION NO. 3155

determined for such purposes. The cited sections allowing for the levy are Sections
26 and 27 of the Agency’s law.

Up until FY 2009-10, the Agency set the tax rate itself (for examplfe $0.21 per $100 of
assessed valuation). However, the tax roll is not static. Therefore, the Agency made
educated guesses as to what rate to levy. This resulted in either a collection of either
too much or too little fo cover the required expenses. Realizing the difficulties in
determining the correct levy rate, in FY 2009-10 the Agency changed it methadology
and now requests that the County collect levy a tax at the rate necessary to raise the
identified amount (for example $125,900). This change in methodology has reduced
the guessing game and provides for more clarity to the levy.

According the Agency's annual adoption of the tax levy, the tax rate statement that
accompanied the 1977 bond proposition discussed the impact of the bond proposition
on property tax rates. This tax rate statement estimated that the property tax rates
would be about $4.70 per $100 of assessed valuation in the first fiscal year after the
bond sale and $0.76 per $100 by the 20" year after the bond sale.

Fiscal | 1D #1Net | Debt ID#1 Tax  [Revenue Budgetary Notes
Year | Valuation |Payable [Rate {per$100 [Budgeted
{Secured) assessed
. - valuation) |
201112 n/a [$1089,000 $0.3100 |$175,900 Additional $70,000 for replacement and

refurbishment of Bighorn water system

Additional $20,000 for replacement and

2010-11 {$42,762,325 | 108,000 0.2399 | 125800 ¢ hishment of Blghorn water system
’ Additional $20,000 for replacement and
2009-10| 46,126,106 | 105,900 0.2274 | 125,900 refurblshment of Bighorn water sysiem
2008-09| 47,138,976 | 105,800 0.2100 | 108,315
Jsed $29,000 from Local Agency
2007-08 | 43,327,983 | 105,800 0,2000 | 78,000 [investment Fund (LAIF) debt service
reserves

Sources; Countly of San Bernardino, Valualions-Tax Rates, Code Area Tax Rates, Bonded
Indebtedness Faor Fiscal Years 2007-08 through FY 2010-11; Agency Budgets

The chart above shows the Improvement District 1 tax levy for the past five years.
For comparison, the levy imposed in FY 2010-11 equated to approximately $0.2399
per $100 of assessed value (or a gain of $125,900). In FY 2011-12 the levy is
estimated at $0.3100 (29% increase) per $100 of assessed value based on $175,900
identified by the Agency as the required amount. The breakdown of the $175,900
required amount is:

» Annual principal and interest payments are approximately $109,000.
Payments will be made in FY 2011-12 according to the following schedule:
December (interest only approximately $17,500) and June (interest
approximately $17,500.00 and principal approximately $74,000).

= Any additional funds collected, estimated at $20,000, will be used for needed
infrastructure improvements within BH [D 1.

s The additional $50,000 was proposed and adopted in the FY 2011-12 budget
to begin to close the deficit in net assets of the Bigharn Mountains service

29




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

area against the Desert View service area as outlined in the FY 2009-10 Audit
Report. The bond payments will conclude in 2019.

The Agency has identified that its independent auditors review the Agency's
Improvement District 1 collections and the use of those funds for its debt and that the
remaining funds collected are utilized within the boundaries of Improvement District 1.

3. Mojave Water Agency Surcharge

The Agency collects this surcharge on the water bill to fund the Agency's share of the
debt service for t_he Morongo Basin Pipeline. This debt will be paid in full in 2021.

4. Desert View service area - Surcharge

Those within the Desert View portion of the Agency pay a $9.30 bi-monthly surcharge
to generate revenue for the annual bond payment for the Desert View Water District
Revenue Bonds. This surcharge on the bi-monthly water bill generates roughly
$50,000 annually with an annual required payment of roughly $40,500. The
remaining amount is collected and used for needed infrastructure improvements
within the Desert View Water System (Flamingo Heights area). The bond payments
will conclude in 2019.

8. Grant Revenue

For FY 2009-10, the Agency recelved significant revenue in the form of an EPA grant
for the Ames Valley Recharge Project ($232,343 earned in 2010 for costs incurred
through the fiscal year). This was one-time revenue and is nof-refiective of annual
activity,

6. Standby charge
The Agency currently does not receive a standby charge. This assessment was
removed in 1998 by voter action (Measures Q, S, and T of the November 1998
election successfully removed the standby charges of the Agency. The assessments
have not been reinstated).

The chart below taken from the FY 2010-11 financial statements shows the revenue and
expenditure categories with respective amounis.

30




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

2011 2010
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sules 3 457,078 513,026
Water services 50,253 33,881
Basic surcharge 395,583 397,680
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,102,914 [,144,587
OPERATING EXPENSES
Transmission and distribution 351,065 406,370
General and administrative 605,744 535,884
Deprecialion 239,331 229,766
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,196,140 1,172,020
OPERATING INCOME ( LOSS) {93,226) (27,433)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 4472 3,266
Tax levy 223,764 237,111
Desert View debt surcharge 50,206 30,345
Grant income 430,605 232,343
Gaivloss on disposal of asset (38,832) {1,170)
Other income/Ex pense 9,036 (4,099)
Interest expense (31,3090 (50,461)
Mojave Water Agency pipeline interest {nole 6) (73,097} {73,254)
Amortization of debt issuance cosls (2,01 1) -
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 552,834 394,081
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 459,608 366,648
NET ASSETS BEGINNING, JULY | 3,853,064 3,487,316
Prior period adjustiment - -
NET ASSETS ENDING, JUNE 30 3 4,313,572 3,853,964

Non-Agency Related Charges on Property Tax Bill
MWA DEBT 1 — Assessed by the Mojave Water Agency after voter approval. These funds

are used primarily for the payment of debt service and maintenance in connection with the
State Water Project {The California Aqueduct).

31




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

MWA DEBT 2 - Assessed by the Mojave Water Agency after voter approval. These funds
are used primarily to supplement the MWA 1 tax and additionally provide funding for Mojave
Water Agency administration.

MWA ID "M" — Assessed by the Mojave Water Agency after voter approval. These funds are
used to fund 40% of the debt service for the pipeline extension from the California Aqueduct
to the Morango Basin (MWA Impravement District M),

EY 2011-12 Budget

The FY 2011-12 Budget totals $1,407,043 — an increase of $84,147. However, the FY 2011-
12 Budget identifies that $91,647 from operational and non-operational revenue is avaitable
to allocate. Therefore, the two budgets are statistically similar. Nonetheless, there are a few
noteworthy differences:

» Administration expense is increasing by 15% due to salary merit increases and the
hiring of a new executive secretary at a higher starting pay than the previous
employee as well as an additional 20% for overtime.

s Operating expense is decreasing by 16% due to the resignation of the field supervisor
and no current intent for the Agency to fill the position.

» As for Non-Operating Revenue, the debt income to pay for the Bighorn FMHA loan is
increasing by 40% to pay for infrastructure improvements and to close the deficit in
net assets of the Bighorn Mountains service area.

Salaries and benefits for FY 2011-12 include seven full-time employees and no seascnal or
temporary employees, The Field Supervisor position remains vacant and there is no intent to
fill the position at this time.

Exec. Sec./Personnel Administration (1 position — filled FT)

Accounting Technician Il/Customer Service Rep. (1 position —filled FT)
Customer Service Rep — (1 position filled FT)

Water Distribution |I (2 positions — filled FT)

Water Distribution | {1 position —filled FT)

Field Supervisor (1 FT position — vacant, not actively recruiting)
General Manager (1 position — filled FT)

In reviewing the Agency's budgets submitted for this review, the budgets do not include at
least one year's worth of actual financial data, as recommended by the Best Practices of the
Government Finance Officers Association. The Commission recommends that for the future
the Agency include at least one year's worth of actual figures.

Commitments

On March 15, 1991, the Agency entered into an agreement with the MWA to become a
participant in the Morongo Basin Pipeline project. Under the agreement, the Agency was
obligated to pay its project allotment percentage of the estimated fixed project cost
commencing July 1, 1991. The payment made to MWA for the current year was $73,524.
The payments commencing June, 1896, and thereafter will be determined by MWA based
upon various factors,

32




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The FY 2009-10 financial statements have identified significant deficiencies in the internal
controls of the Agency. A significant deficlency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. The independent auditors
noted the following matters that provide an opportunity for the Agency to enhance its existing
internal controls. A detailed description of each matter with the auditor's recommendation
and the Agency’s comments are included at the back of the FY 2009-10 audit, included as
Attachment #2).

1.

Positive Pay - the Agency does not use positive pay. Posltive pay is a process by
which an organization's bank would be electronically provided a list of check numbers
and check amounts that the bank would be authorized to allow to process for
payment.

The Agency has responded to LAFCO that the costs for positive pay are high in
addition to concerns about the effect on customers. Af this time, Agency stalf has not
faken this matter to a commitlee,

Lock Box - The Agency does not use a "lock box" service (P.O. Box under the control
of the Agency's bank) for collecting its revenues. A lock box service significantly
reduces the risk of theft of funds by employees of the Agency.

The Agency has responded to LAFCO that the Agency board rejected this
recommendation based on cost and the fact that many customers pay at the office
with checks and cash. Therefore, implementation of this expense does not eliminate
this concern.

Inventory Controls - The inventory custodian currently petforms data entry for service
orders that involve inventory requisitions. He also has system access rights to make
adjustments to inventory records. Internal control is maximized when those persons
that have physical access to inventory do not also have the ability to adjust the
inventory data recorded in the system.

The Agengy has responded fo LAFCO that implementation of recommendations 3
and 4 were implemented by the Agency staff without going to the board.

Bank Reconciliations - Bank reconciliations of the Agency are performed by the
individual that performs data entry for cash disbursements, Best practice provides
that reconciliations be performed by individuals that are not involved in the creation of
cash disbursements and that do not have direct or indirect access fo the funds in the
bank account.

Ethical Culture - New auditing standards recommend that organizations consider
certain best practices to reinforce a strong ethical culture. Accordingly, the auditors
recammended that the Agency consider inclusion of certain ethical conduct policies
into its Employee Handhaook.

33




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

The Agency has responded to LAFCO that the policy recommendation for Ethical
Conduct Paolicies were brought before the Board of Directors and approved as a
revision to the Emplayee Handboolk in April 2011.

Other Information

Regqular Audits

Government Code Section 26909 requires all districts to provide for regular audits; the
Agency conducts annual audits and meets this requirement. Section 26909 also requires
districts to file a copy of the audit with the county auditor within 12 months of the end of the
fiscal year. According to records from the County Auditor, the last audit received was in
March 2011 for FY 2008-10,

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits

. The Agency contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), an
agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides
retirement, disability benefits, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within
the State of California. According to the FY 2009-10 financial statements, the actuarial value
of PERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of shart-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a three-year period (smoothed market
value). PERS unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on a closed basis (copies of PERS' annual financial report may be obtained
from their executive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814). A review of the financial
statements identifies that the Agency has a zero net pension obligation. The financial
statements do not identify if there are any other Post Employment Benefits. However, the
Agency states that there are no Post Employment Benefits offered to employees.

Appropriations Limit

Article XIIIB of the State Constitution, the Gann Spending Limitation Initiative (in 1979, the
voters amended the California Constitution by passing Proposition 4, the Gann Initiative),
mandates local government agencies receiving the proceeds of taxes to establish an
appropriations limit. Without an appropriations limit, agencies are not authorized to expend
the proceeds of taxes. Section 9 of this Article provides exemptions to the appropriations
limit, such as Section 9(a) provides exemption for debt service, and Section 9(c) exempts the
appropriations limit for special districts which existed on January 1, 1978 and which did not
levy an ad valorem tax on property in excess of $0.125 (12 % cents) per $100 of assessed
value for the 1977-78 fiscal year. According to the County of San Bernardino 1977-78
Valuations/Tax Rates publication (excerpt inciuded as a part of Altachment #2), the tax rate
for the two predecessor districts were as follows:

Bighorn Mountains (General Levy) $0.0000
Bighorn Mountains (Improvement A) $1.0000
Desert View (General Levy) $0.5285
Desert View (Bond, Land Only) $3.5906

Prior to consolidation the Bighorn Mountains Water Agency never established an
appropriations limit based upon its lack of general levy. However, the general levy tax rate

34




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

for Desert View for FY 1977-1978 was $0.5285 per $100 of assessed value. Being over the
$0.125 tax rate, at that time Desert View did not qualify for an exemption from the
requirement of an appropriations limit and fuifilled this mandate through annual adoption. As
a part of the LAFCO resolution approving the consolidation of the two predecessor districts in
1990, LAFCO imposed the condition that the appropriations limit of the consolidated agency,
if any, shall be the aggregate appropriations limits of the two agencies (a copy of the
resolution is on file in the LAFCO office). Therefore, in the years following consolidation, the
Agency was required to annually set an appropriation limit in compliance with Article XIlIIB of
the,Constitution and implementing legislation contained in Government Code Section 7910
and the Agency’s audits were required to review and ascertain its accuracy.

The Agency has indicated in the materials submitted to LAFCO that is has relled upon a legal
opinion from its attorney that it was not required to comply with the provisions related to
setting an appropriation limit based upon an analysis of the previous Bighorn Mountains
Water Agency. LAFCO has identified its position that the conditions of approval for the
consalidation clearly stated that it was required to do so and without an appropriations limit,
the agency is not authorized to expend the proceeds of ad valorem property taxes. The
Commission determines that the Agency shall comply with the requirements of the
consolidation requiring the annual establishment of an appropriation limit. The Agency has
provided a copy of its Resolution adopting an appropriation limit

Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilifies:

The Agency's intertie with Hi-Desert Water District ("HDWD")} is currently disconnected and
isolated from cross-connection. The pump was removed many years ago. According to the
Agency, with minimal effort a connection could be made whereby the Agency could receive
water via gravity flow from HDWD. However, more work would be needed for the Agency to
pump water into HDWD's system. The two agencies are actively seeking a new, permanent
emergency intertie solution, In addition, the Agency has the ability to "high line" a connection
between fire hydrants to create an emergency intertie with CSA 70 Zone W-1.

Accountability for community service needs, including governmentat sfructure and
operational efficiencies:

Current Board Composition

The BDVWA is an independent special district governed by a five-member board of directors
elected at-large. Membership elections are held in odd years as a part of the consolidated
November election. A review of records available though the County Registrar of Voters
identifies an election for director membership has been held every two years since at least
1997.

As a result of the November 2011 elections, the board is composed of the following, effective
December 2011 along with board positions:

35




RESOLUTION NO, 3155

Board Member ) Title Term Elected/Appointed

Terry Burkhart President 2013 Elected full term

Vacant * 2013 To be appointed in lleu of
election - short term

Judy Corl-Lorono Director 2013 Elected short term

Michael McBride Director | 2015 Appointed (ran unopposed)

David Larson Director 2015 Appointed {ran tnopposed)

* The director-elect from the November 2011 election neglected to file his Oath of Office by noon
December 2 as required by the Election Code and the positicn was subsequently declared
vacant by the remaining Board members on December 8, 2011, The Board then acted to appaint
a new director for which advertising has begun, again in accordance with the Election Code.

Regular Board Meetings are scheduled at 6:00p.m. on the fourth Tuesday of each month.
The location of the meetings is not at the Agency office at 622 South Jemez Trail; rather
meetings are held at 1720 North Cherckee Trial in Landers at the former Bighorn office.
Standing committees include the Finance/Public Relations/Education/Personnel Committee
and the Planning/Engineering/Legislative/Grant/Security Commitiee. Each commitiee meets
bi-monthly. Additionally, 2 member of the Board is also appointed to the Morongo Basin
Pipeline Commission.

Board and General Manager Turnover

As stated in the introduction to this service review portion of this report for the Agency,
LAFCO has adopted the Governar's Office of Planning and Research {OPR) Municipal
Service Review Guidelines by reference for its use during the conduct of service reviews.
The Guidelines read that in evaluating an agency’s local accountability and governance
structure, LAFCO may wish to address agency representatives in its review (OPR
Guidelines, Page 42, item 9.3).

Board Members

Up until 2007, the bi-annual election was typical with other special districts with five member
boards — with either two or three candidates running each year with modest director turnover.
However, at the August 2007 election the voters successfully recalled three members with
the regularly scheduled election taking place three months later in November. The past four
elections have had 13 seats open with eight changes in membership, representing a 62%
electlon turnover rate (77% turnover rate when adding appointments). Taking into account
13 open seats and seven seats not up for election, the overall turnover rate has been 54%
since August 2007.

Election Seats | Newly elected/appointed Voter

open turnout
Aug 2007 3 3 elected 45%
Nov 2007 2 1 elected 156%
Nov 2009 4 3 elected {2 resigned, replaced by appointments) 26%
Nov 2011 4 1 elected 25%
TOTAL 13 10 total (8 elected with 2 appointments)

36




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Whereas a modest turnover is natural and even healthy, the high turnover rate coupled with
low voter turnout is a cause for concern. In a recent edition of its report, What's So Special
about Special Districts, the state Senate Local Government Committee states that the,
“narrow and technical nature of a district's activities often results in low civic visibility untll a
crisis arises.” The August 2007 recall election had a 45% voter turnout. However, the past
three elections have had voter turnouts of 15%, 26%, and 25% (it should be noted that the
elections conducted by the County Registrar of Voters for November 2007 and November
2009 had a grand total turnout of 13%, 10%, and 10%, respectively). The high turnover and
low voter turnout has resulted in the two longest tenured board members being elected in
2007. The three other members were either elected or appointed since the 2008 election.

General Managers

The employee leadership has also experienced a high turnover rate within the past ten
years. In that time, there have been six general managers (nine since 1998) in charge of the
Agency's operations, adminisiration, and policy implementation.

In general, a high turnover rate of elected members in conjunction with general manager
turnover could produce a lack of continuity and institutional knowledge, possible missteps in
administrative compliance, and the resetting of the learming curve with each furnover. This
agency continues to operate without an appropriation limit and has not segregated the
operations and funds of the two predecessor agencies. This service review cannot offer a
remedy for this occurrence other than to point out that a reduced turnover rate of elected
membership and employee leadership would, in the Commission's opinion, result in
increased steady direction for the Agency.

Brown Act

The OPR Guidelines read that in evaluating an agency’s local accountability and governance
structure, LAFCO may wish to address in its review an agency’s compliance with state
disclosure {aws and the Brown Act (OPR Guidelines, Page 42, item 8.1).

Within the past four years, the Agency has been notified by the Office of the District Attorney,
County of San Bernardino that it has violated the Brown Act (Open Meeting Law, Gov. Code
§54950 et seq.). First, in 2007 County prosecutors strongly criticized the board for
repeatedly violating the Brown Act, especially its refusal to address public concerns over
secret meetings.

Second, the District Attorney’s Office in March 2011 responded to Agency legal counsel
regarding a Brown Act violation stemming from a complaint that the Agency Board approved
four items of compensation for an Agency officer without providing notice of its actions. A
copy of the letter Is on file at the LAFCO office.

According to the District Attorney’s letter, the Agency noticed and held a closed session
meeting regarding the officer’'s evaluation, and at the open session meeting announced that
the officer recelved a favorable review and the Board voted on compensation items. Based
on the below items, the District Attorney’s letter identifies its opinion that the Board's actions
were a violation of the Brown Act.

s §54957(b)(4) expressly states; "Closed sessions held pursuant to this subdivision
shall not Include discussion or action on proposed compensation except for a

37




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of discipline.” [n other
words, there are statutes that require compensation to be called out on an open
session agenda even when an evaluation of the same employee is noticed for the
closed session portion of the same meeting (Gov. Code §54957(b){(4) states that the
term "employee"” shall include an officer or an independent contractor who functions
as an officer or an employee but shall not include any elected official, member of a
legislative body or other independent contractors).

Discussicns about the salaries of non-elected officers must be discussed in open
sessjon. Gov. Code §54954.2(a) specifically states that the agenda must describe
“each item of business” to be discussed or transacted. Hence, the statute plainly
requires that compensation be called out specifically on the agenda if it will be
discussed at the Board meeting.

[n San Diego Union v. City Council of the City of San Diego (1983) 146 Cal. App. 3d
947, the court expressly held that compensation must be discussed — and properly

noticed — in an open session. Hence, San Biego Union clarifies that after an
evaluation of a public employee is held in a closed session; compensation of that
employee must be discussed in "a properly naticed, open session.”

The letter further identifies the Agency's statement that in the future the Board will provide
separate notice on the open session agenda when employee compensation is ta be
considered even if notice of consideration of an employee's evaluation is also placed on the
same agenda for closed session. Based upon the Agency's statement that it will not repeat
its above-described actions, the District Attorney considered the matter closed.

Nonetheless, the District Attorney voiced concern about the Board's future compliance with
the Brown Act since the Board failed to admit a violation. Therefore, the District Attorney
recommended that the current Board members obfain training on the requirements of the
Brown Act. The Agency has responded to LAFCO regarding this recommendation, and state
that Board members attended the Special District and Local Government Institute Brown Act,
Public Records Act and Conflict of Interest Workshop, San Diego, CA June 2011.

The November 2011 election has resulted in new membership on the Board. The
Commission determines that the Agency should implement a policy that Beard members
obtain periodic training on the requirements of the Brown Act,

Operaticnal Efficiencies

Operational efficiencies are realized through several joint agency practices, for example:

Mojave Water Agency (MWA} provides professional guidance and services to
BDVVWA in areas such as geohydrology, engineering, and grant assistance. MWA
also advises on and provides technical support towards project grant applications.

The Agency is a member of the Special District Risk Management authority
(SDRMA), a Joint Powers authority, which provides medical benefits, property and
liability insurance and workers compensation insurance to the Agency as well as
safely and loss prevention services.

38




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

« The Agency is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA), a
statewide non-profit Joint Powers Insurance Authority with a mission to assist
members in the areas of leadership, advocacy and information. In addition, ACWA-
HBA (Health Benefits Authority) provides dental, vision and life insurance benefits to
all Agency employess.

o The Agency is a partner, through MOU, in the Morongo Basin Alliance for Water
Awareness and Conservation (*AWAC"). The mission of AWAC is to promote the
efficient use of water and increase the communities' awareness of conservation as an
important tool to help ensure an adequate water supply.

o The Agency works closely with the Open Space Group, a collaborative effort between
all of the towns, the Morongo Basin Open Space Group, the U.S. Marine Corps,
Joshua Tree National Park, Mojave Desert Land Trust, Defenders of Wildlife, and the
Wildlands Conservancy among others.

Government Structure Opticns

There are two types of government structure options:

1. Areas served by the Agency outside its boundarles through “out-of-agency” service
contracts;

2. Other potential government structure changes such as consolidations,
reorganizations, dissolutions, etc.

Qut-of-Agency Service Agreements:

Pursuant to Government Code Section 56133, LAFCO is charged with the responsibility for
reviewing and taking action on any city or district contract to extend service outside of its
jurisdiction. Correspondence from the Agency in 1994, on file at the LAFCO office, identifies
that the Agency did not have any out-of-agency service contracts at that time. However,
amendments to Section 56133 (subsection ) effective January 2, 2002, indicate the
provision of this subsection do not apply to an extended service that a city or district was
providing on or before January 1, 2001. For this review, the Agency has notified LAFCO that
it serves three connections outside of its boundaries located in Section 24. Agency records
identify that service was provided before 2001, and therefore further review by LAFCO is not
required.

BDVWA provides retail water outside of its boundaries to approximately 17 customers within
the boundaries of County Service Area 70 Zone W-1. The arrangement for this service is
between the Agency and the County (as the governing body for CSA 70 Zone W-1) though a
contact signed in December 1997, This contract is exempt from LAFCO review since it is
solely between two public agencies. At this time, BDVVWA does not charge a special rate fo
these customers that are outside of the Agency’s boundaries. There are four additional
parcels within this area that are undeveloped at this time. Service to these parcels by the
Agency would require either: 1) an amendment to the December 1997 contract, or 2) an out-
of-agency service contact approved by LAFCO since the four parcels are to be within the
Agency sphere of influence.

39




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

As noted in the Water section of this report, Johnson Valley does not have a pressurized
water system. Johnson Valley has a standalone water hauling station supplied by a single
groundwater well and a 10,000 gallon storage reservoir operated by the Agency. This site
serves approximately 30 residential hauling customers and approximately three commercial
water hauling customers who deliver water to an unknown number of customers. The
Agency has no current plans to extend pipeline service to the Johnson Valley area.
Population densities are so low that there are not enough customers to financially support
the construction of a water line. Atissue is if the water is hauled outside of the Agency's
sphere of influence. Government Code Section 56133 limits the provision of service to within
an agency's sphere. With a pressurized system with pipes in the ground, it is easy to
ascertain the location of the recipient. However, with hauled water, it is difficult to ascertain
the final destination from a hauler. Furthermare, this single well is the sole public source of
water for the Johnson Valley. Given this circumstance, the Agency’s parent law and policies
do allow for water to be delivered outside of its boundaries. Section 15, ltem 7, of the
Agency's operating law does allow the Agency to sell water to anyone if it finds that there is a
surplus of water above that which may be required by consumers within the agency.
Expanding on Section 15, Item 7, the Agency’s Rules and Regulations (Section 1.6 — Service
Outside Agency Boundaries) provide a mechanism to supply bulk water to properties located
outside of the Agency's boundaries.

Government Structure Options:

The State has published advisory guidelines for LAFCOs to address all of the substantive .
issues required by law for conducting a service review ("Local Agency Formation
Commission Municipal Service Review Guidelines’, State of California Governor's Office of
Planning and Research, August 2003). The Guidelines address 49 factors in identifying an
agency's government structure options. Themes among the factors include but are not
limited to: more logical service boundaries, elimination of overlapping boundaries that cause
service inefficiencies, economies of scale, opportunities to enhance capital improvement
plans, and recommendations by a service provider.

In some cases, functional consolidation or integration can reduce costs so that services can
be maintained and improved with fewer dollars. The following scenarios are not being
presented as options for the Commission to consider for action as a part of this service
review. Rather, a service review should address possible options, and the following are
theoretical, yet possible, scenarios for the community to consider for the future. Movement
towards these scenarios would include, but not be limited to, a plan for service, fiscal impact
analysis, and any other required studies.

¢ Expansion of boundaries.

o In 1995 the Agency submitted a proposal to detach approximately eight square
miles from its boundaries in the Landers area (LAFCO 2792). The Commission
approved the proposal because it eliminated an overlap of similar-purpose
agencies and could possibly lead to a less contentious refationship between the
residents of the two agencies.

The current staff of the Agency has expressed desire to explore the option of
returning this area to the boundaries of the Agency. At this time, the Agency
serves 17 customers within the area through contract with the County. The
Agency, residents, or landowners could submit an application to expand the

40




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

boundaries of the Agency to the east to include the Goat Mountain area. Such an
application would be processed to include the dissolution of CSA 70 W-1 with the
Agency identified as the successor agency. The Agency would then be
responsible for extending its services to the area, including continuing the
services of the dissolved CSA 70 zone.

Including the area of CSA 70 W-1 would allow those that the Agency currently
serves within the area the opportunity to participate in Agency elections and have
a voice in Agency matters. The Agency would obtain additional tax revenue and
be able to allocate any cost savings to all of its customers. Before the
detachment, these properties were within the Agency's Improvement District 1
and contributed to the Improvement District 1 bond debt for the Bighorn water
system. Currently, these properiies outside of Agency’s boundaries pay the same
amount for the water but do not contribute to the debt repayment that provided
funding for the water infrastructure.

o The Proposed Ames Valley Recharge Facility is located in the Pipes Wash area
of Section 24 which is within the BDVWA Sphere of Influence. The Agency has
stated that eventual annexation of this area as well as Sections 25 and 35 would
be best to manage and protect the underlying water resources and promote
continuity in institutional arrangements. Shouid any Agency facilities be located
within these areas, annexation would provide the opportunity for the facilities to be
removed from the tax rolls.

Consolidation with one of the bordering water districts. Consolidation with the
neighboring Joshua Basin Water District and/or Hi-Desert Water District would allow
for economies of scale and allow for a more consolidated voice to address water
issues and potentially future wastewater treatment issues. Given the historical
sentiment in the areas, this option is unlikely at this time, even if it would pose
benefits to the customers and citizens of the area,

Wastewater Services provided by the Agency. There is no wastewater service in the
area; all the properties are on septic systems. Should the Regional Water Quality

Control Board require the community to install a sewer system to handle wastewater,
the Agency would be best suited to provide wastewater collection and transportation.

Joint Powers Agency for Sewer Treatment. The Mojave Water Agency (“MWA") is
authorized by LAFCO an active sewer function (although it does not actively provide
such a service at this time), and being a regional entity it could help shepherd the
development of a reglonal wastewater treatment facility.

A similar situation occurred in the late 1970s in the Victor Valley region of the County.
To meet the requirements of the federal Clean Water Act and provide wastewater
treatment for the growing popuiation, the communities of the Victor Valley requested
that the MWA, being a regional entity, help shepherd the development of a regional
wastewater treatment facility. In accepting the request, MWA was designated by the
Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board as the responsibte entity for the
design of the Victor Valley Regional Wastewater Reclamation Project. A few years
later, the communities of the Victor Valley completed the creation of the joint powers
authority, which became known as the Victor Valley Wastewater Reclamation
Authority ("VVWRA"). VVWRA was expressly created for the purpose of providing

41




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

the operation and management of the treatment of wastewater through a reglonal
facility and the ultimate disposal of effluent and solids. On June 1, 1978, VVWWRA
assumed the assets and authority for the Project, and MWA divested itself from the
Project and the provision of sewer service.

A similar response could occur in the Morongo Basin portion of MWA, In February
2010, the LAFCO Commission approved the Hi-Desert Water District's request to
expand the service description of its sewer function in order to actively provide for
development of a regional wastewater treatment plant. The District is undertaking a
project titled “Hi-Desert Water District Water Reclamation Facility, Wastewater
Treatment Piant, and Sewer Collection System Project”. The project anticipates a
treatment facility to treat the collected effiuent within the project's boundaries. Both
agencies, and more, could form a joint powers agency for treatment of wastewater
from within each agency. In general, each agency would collect wastewater within its
own boundaries through collection systems owned independently, and transport the
collected wastewater to a regional treatment plant. Governance of the joint powers
agency wollld be the participating agencies. Such an agreement could reduce
duplication of treatment plants and provide the opportunity for economies of scale
while maintaining the independence of each agency.

Detachment of the Johnson Valley area from the Agency and formation of an_
independent Community Services District. The historical record reveals those within
the Johnson Valley area expressing dissatisfaction with their water situation. Those
within Johnson Valley directly (through special taxes) or indirectly (as a share of the
general tax levy) pay for the State Water Project, Mojave Water Agency, MWA
Improvement District M, and Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency. With all the
payments, they still lack a pressurized water system. At this time, the Agency has no
current plans to extend pipeline service to the Johnson Valley area. However,
population densities are so low that there are not enough customers to financially
support the construction of a water system.

In this scenario, the Johnson Valley area would detach from the Agency and form a
community services district. The new agency would have local control over board
representation and any operational matters to include assumption of the weli that is
currently used for water hauling. However, with a population of less than 500 and
being sparsely developed, it is questionable if the tax base is adequate to fund not
only a new district but also construction of a pressurized water system.

Maintenance of the status quo. This option would maintain the existing governmental
structure of the Agency.

At this time, the Agency, landowners, or residents have not formally expressed interest in
any of the options outlined above. As stated above, movement towards these scenarios
would include, but not be limited to, a plan for service, fiscal impact analysis, and any other
required studies.

The preamble to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000
reads that while the Legislature recognizes the critical role of many limited purpose agencies,
especially in rural areas, it finds and declares that a single multipurpose governmental
agency accountable for community service needs and financial resources may be the best
mechanism for establishing community service priorities. Further, the law states that the

42




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Commission may recommend governmental reorganizations to particular agencies using the
spheres of influence as the basis for those recommendations.

At this time, the Commission is not recommending any reorganization be considered.

However, the Commission is recommending modifications to the Agency's sphere of
influence to address the community definition for Homestead Valley.

WHEREAS, the following determinations are made in conformance with Government Code

Section 56425 and local Commission policy:

1.

Present and Planned Uses in the Area, Including Agricultural and Open-Space Lands:

Within the Agency’s entire sphere, roughly 46% of the land is privately owned and the
remainder, 54%, is public, which are devoted primarily to resource protection and
recreational use.

Approximately 53 percent of the County of San Bernardino land use designations is
designated Rural Living (RL, RL-5, and RL-40), 45 percent is Resource Conservation, and
the remainder of the land use designations comprises two percent (Special Development-
Commercial, Neighborhood Commercial, Rural Commercial, General Commercial, Service
Commercial, and Institutional). The commercial developments within the Agency are
generally located along State Route 247 and Reche Road.

By 2040, the population within the Agency's boundaries is estimated to reach 6,154. This
represents a projected annual growth rate of approximately 2.4 percent between 2010 and
2040, which also represents a total population increase of 49 percent from 2010,

The population projections identified earlier indicates that the population within the Agency's
boundaries will be 6,154 by 2040, Based on the maximum residential build-out within the
Agency's boundaries, the projected maximum population is anticipated to reach 11,759.
Likewise, based on the projected population for 2040, it is anticipated that the number of
households within the Agency’s boundaries will be 2,619 with a maximum potential build-out
to reach approximately 5,005. These imply that the study area will reach 52 percent of its
potential household and population capacity by 2040.

Present and Probable Need for Public Facilities and Services in the Area:

Johnson Valley

The entire area known as Johnson Valley does not have a pressurized water system.
Johnson Valley has a standalone water hauling station supplied by a single groundwater well
and a 10,000 gallon storage reservoir. The single well in the community was constructed
from grant funding obtained by the County and the Agency now operates this well. This site
serves approximately 41 residential hauling customers and approximately four commercial
water hauling customers who deliver water to an unknown number of customers, The
Agency has no current plans to extend pipeline service to the Johnson Valley area.
Population densities are so low that there are not enough customers to financially support
the construction of a water line. The Agency states that redundancy in the Johnson Valley
bulk system is needed.

43




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Ames Valley Recharge Project

The proposed Ames Valley Recharge project will deliver SWP water to the Ames Valley for
recharge at the Pipes Wash Spreading Grounds to mitigate historical overdraft conditions in
the Region. The recharge project will serve water agencies using groundwater in the basin
including BDVWA, HDWD, and CSA 70 (through its zones W-1 and W-4). BDVWA, in
cooperation with MWA, is implementing the project, which consists of a feasibility study,
approximately 0.75 miles of conveyance pipeline to connect to the Morongo Basin Pipeline,
recharge to the Pipes Wash, and the installation of monitoring wells. The initial recharge
capacity is planned at 1,500 AFY.

The project envisions the banking of water from the State Water Project. Each participating
entity would accrue water in a water storage account. The water would be purchased, and
percolated into the groundwater basin. There would be no restrictions on the use of that
water and inter-entity transfers could occur as well. This project is intended to mitigate
impacts from over pumping of the Ames Valley Basin, provide for beneficial use of water and
insure the conjunctive use of local groundwater and imported water from the State Water
Project. This is a regional project with multiple beneficiaries including the piped area of the
Agency, the Hi-Desert Water District, CSA 70 Zone W-1 (Landers), CSA 70 Zone W4
(Pioneertown), and the Mojave Water Agency.

Present Capacity of Public Facilities and Adequacy of Public Services

Current Supply and Demand

The agency has seven pressure zanes in.the primary water system. Well No. 10 in Johnson
Valley serves as a stand-alone water system for the purposes of Department of Public Health
Consumer Confidence Reporting. There are seven active production wells operated by the
Agency. There are four separate bulk hauling station locations around the Agency, one being
the Well No. 10 facility. The other three are located within the larger pressurized water
system with two stations located in the predecessor Bighorn Mountains Water Agency area.
The last station is located in Flamingo Heights is in the predecessor Desert View Water
District area. The three hauling stations inside the pressurized system are supplied by the 6
active production wells (not by Well No, 10},

The agency's intertie with Hi-Desert Water District ("HDWD?") is currently disconnected and
isolated from cross-connection. The pump was removed many years ago. According to the
Agency, with minimal effort a connection could be made whereby the Agency could receive
water via gravity flow from HDWD. However, more work would be needed for the Agency to
pump water into HDWD's system. The two agencies are actively seeking a new, permanent
emergency intertie solution. In addition, the Agency has the ability o "high line" a connection
between fire hydrants to create an emergency intertie with CSA 70 Zone W-1,

Many of the fire hydrants do not produce sufficient flow and pressure to meet the current
County Fire Flow standard of 1,000 gallons per minute with a residual pressure of 20 pounds
per square inch.



RESOLUTION NO. 3156

Future Supply and Demand

According to the MWA 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, the local groundwater supply
available to BDVWA is estimated to be 500 acre-feet annually. |t is estimated that during the
current planning horizon the population could increase by 60 percent. BDVWA will need
between 749 and 829 acre-feet per year in order to supply its current and future customers
(an additional minimum of 249 acre-feet). The MWA 2010 UWMP further states that BDVWA
will need facilities to produce about 2,388 gallons per minute to meet the maximum day plus-
fire flow. With the potential for future reductions in the State Water Project allocation, the
Agency may or may not be able to meet is future requirements with water from the State
Water Project.

In April 2007, BDVWA adopted the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency Water System
Master Plan ("WSMP"). The master plan identified the following deficiencies in the existing
infrastructure: heavy reliance on 6-inch and 8-inch water mains which do not provide
adequate fire flow; inability of most reservoirs to refill overnight after a 500-gallons-per-
minute (gpm) fire; need for spreading grounds for groundwater storage and recovery; a
groundwater management plan and the inefficient operation of portions of the system. Once
the deficiencies were identified, the Agency prepared the Bighorn-Desert View

Water Agency Water Infrastructure Restoration Program (*WIRP"). The WIRP outlines
specific system improvements to remediate these deficiencies.

Two WIRP projects that are near completion include a Groundwater Management Plan
("GWMP") and the Ames Valley Recharge Project. Local groundwater is currently the sole
source of its water supply, but BDVWA has annual nine percent capagcity in the Morongo
Basin Pipeline and may purchase SWP water from MWA. Although the infrastructure
needed to deliver SWP water to the Ames Valley region already exists, additional facilities
are needed to convey imported SWP water to spreading grounds for recharge, storage, and
subsequent recovery. A Feasibility Study, including a groundwater model, is scheduled for
completion in late 2011/early 2012 and documents the ability to store and recover SWP
water in the basin. This document will also include assistance to Pioneertown (CSA 70/W-4)
enabling them fo secure a potable water supply. The GWMP will address the purchase of
SWP water for recharge and pumping restrictions in the event that overdraft conditions are
not controlled.

Social and Economic Communities of Interest;

The social communities of interest are the unincorporated areas of Landers, Flamingo
Heights, and Johnson Valley. The Lucerne Valley Unified School District overlays Johnson
Valley while the Morongo Unified Schoaol District overlays LLanders and Flamingo Heights,
There is a little commercial activity is along Highway 247,

Additional Determinations

s As required by State Law notice of the hearing was provided through publication in a
newspaper of general circulation, the Hi-Desert Star. Individual notice was not
provided as allowed under Government Code Section 56157 as such mailing would
include more than 1,000 individual notices. As outlined in Commission Policy #27, in-

45




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

lieu of individual notice the notice of hearing publication was provided through an
eighth page legal ad.

» As required by State law, individual notification was provided to affected and
interested agencies, County departments, and those agencies and individuals
requesting mailed notice. In addition, on December 6, 2011, LAFCO staff met with
the agencies and representatives to review the determinations and recommendations
made within its draft report, to solicit comments on the determinations presented and
to respond to any questions of the affected agencies.

. Comments from landowners/registered voters and any affected agency have been
reviewed and considered by the Commission in making its determinations.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 56425(1) the range of
services provided by the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency shall be limited to the following:

FUNCTIONS SERVICES

Water Acquisition, retail, distribution

WHEREAS, having reviewed and considered the findings as outlined above, the
Commission determines to reduce the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency’s existing sphere of
influence by approximately 11,882 acres, expand its sphere of influence by a total of approximately
8,140 acres, and affirm the balance of its existing sphere of influence.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Local Agency Formation Commission of the
County of San Bernardino, State of California, that this Commission shall consider the territory
shown on the map attached as Exhibit "A” as being within the sphere of influence of the Bighorn-
Desert View Water Agency; it being fully understood that establishment of such a sphere of
influence is a policy declaration of this Commission based on existing facts and circumstances
which, although not readily changed, may be subject to review and change in the event a future
significant change of circumstances so warrants;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of
San Bernardino, State of California, does hereby determine that the Bighorn-Desert View Water
Agency shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Local Agency Formation Commission of the
County of San Bernardino from any legal expense, legal action, or judgment arising out of the
Commission’s designation of the modified sphere of influence, including any reimbursement of legal
fees and costs incurred by the Commission.

THIS ACTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Local Agency Formation Commission of the
County of San Bernardino by the following vote:

AYES: COMMISSIONERS: Bagley, Coleman, Curatalo, Rutherford
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: Cox, Mitzelfelt, McCallon
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: None

46




RESOLUTION NO. 3155

Fekekidek fek it dofok ARk Rk Refe Sk et ok ook it dodelefededefekedoded dee dede fes e e des el el veste e e Sk el dvedededniod el i ek

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )

I, KATHLEEN ROLLINGS-McDONALD, Executive Officer of the Local Agency
Formation Commission of the County of San Bernardino, California, do hereby certify this
record to be a full, true, and correct copy of the action taken by said Commission, by vote of
the members present, as the same appears in the Official Minutes of said Commission at its
meeting of April 18, 2012.

DATED: April 19, 2012

A‘y-lLEENR LLINGS-McDONALD

Executive Officer

47




Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Agency Office
622 5, Jemez Trail
Yucca Valley, CA 92284-1440

Board of Directors

Michael McBride, President

Judy Corl-Lorono, Vice President
David Larson, Director

Terry Burkhart, Director 760/364-2315 Phone
J. Dennis Staley, Director 760/364-3412 Fax
Marina ID West, P.G., General Manager 4

A Public Agency www.bdvwa.org

REGULAR MEETING REPORT™

BOARD MEETING OFFICE §
1720 N. Cherokee Trail, Landers,g(i?@» 92285
Thursday, April 19, 2012 -,8;45 a;m.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Directo;; %ﬁgﬁﬁ!&_@oﬁrﬁ%o & Director Burkhart
et

CALL TO ORDER

Director Corl-Lorono called the meetipg %gder at 8:55 a.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
l.ed by John Burkhart

ROLL CALL
Directors:

Staff:

Michelle Corbin

APPROVAI,OF THE AGENDA
DifectorCerl-Lorono and Director Burkhart approved the agenda as presented.

CONFERENCE CALL WITH MOJAVE WATER AGENCY'S LEGAL/LEGISLATIVE
AND PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE

Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency Committee participated via teleconference to
Mojave Water Agency's agendized meeting to receive an update by their State
Advocate, Ed Manning and Carolyn Jensen of KP Public Affairs and federal advocate
Heather Hennessey.

The federal advocate, Heather Hennessey of Innovated Federal Strategies gave a

legislative update. The appropriations committee is trying to move forward. The Energy
Report for April 19 2012

PLEGS Committee Meeting

Approved on Xxo000x xx, 2012

Page 1 of 3



and Water Appropriations bill, which includes the Bureau of Reclamation funding levels,
is looking like it will be lower than last year according to summary documents that have
been released to date. As soon as they see a more in depth view of the bill, they wili do
more analysis and report back. Any real progress on funding will not be done until after
the November elections.

State advocate Ed Manning discussed the upcoming policy committee deadline. There
are many Delta bills being introduced by the various authors on behalf of the Delta
Coalition who are trying to change the 2009 legislative package. Four of the bélls will
be heard next week. He went on to say that these bills are an attempt to put additional

requirements into the Delta package which was already negotiated and agree«ﬁ'f);&)(. he
State Water Contractors. .

Lance Ekhart of the Mojave Water Agency reported on a draft polig p@éptic tanks
slated for adoption on June 19"™. The part to be concerned about wil parcels 2.5
acres or less. These parcels will not be allowed to have a septic%%n‘ for waste water
disposal. Haif of the population within the Mojave Water Agency uses septic systems.
A recent siudy showed that the septic tanks in our area p"’e‘se%e immediate threat to
our local groundwater resource and septic tanks are % important part of the
groundwater return flow. He went on to say that theipstaff i in the process of drafting
a recommendation to oppose the Policy.

Mike Stevens discussed his upcoming retiremi?i?g%#ﬁe cash for grass program.
> Fod
No Public Comment

The Committee directed staff to T
California Regional Water Quality f£ogtrol Board Colorado River Region #7 and also to
oppose Section 7.8 of the FinalsRraft “Water Quality Control Policy for Siting, Design,
Operation and Maintenangé®ofROn3Site Wastewater Treatment Systems”, of the State
Water Resources Control Boardy

Adjourned for a breall
am.

10:02 am - Reconvened from break at approximately 10:12

ADOPTING A§P\%3BIC RECORDS RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION POLICY

General M anager West gave the staff report stating the existing Policy from 1997
dictates _that%everything is to be saved. The proposed Policy will identify three

caﬁg\oﬁﬁs; year, 10 year and indefinite. The GM specifically addressed the committee
viewp Iﬂtﬁ%n audio tapes and agenda packets. The Public Records Act states that
au 'ig{tapes may be destroyed following approval of BOD minutes however the minutes
do not always reflect verbatim discussions. Also, there have been times that the staff
has needed to go back and listen to old audio tapes to better understand what events
had transpired.

She is proposing that the Agenda Packets be kept indefinitely in electronic format, with
secure back-up kept off site. An additional back-up copy can be maintained on the web
site.

Director Corl-Lorono feels any audio or video should be kept indefinitely.

Report for April 19 2012
PLEGS Committee Meeting
Approved on Xooooxx xx, 2012
Page 2 of 3



Public comment:

Anonymous person stated that there are many small hard drives available. The most
recent ones have a terabyte capacity that can fit in a 6" by 6" box. We may want to
consider an off-site provider.

The Committee input to staff is to initiate a back-up system for digital files, keep audio
indefinitely, maintain hard copy agenda packets 3 years and to bring the entire Policy to
the next regular BOD meeting for further consideration.

CONSENT ITEMS
a. Regular PLEGS Meeting Report, February 16, 2012

No public comment,

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
No public comment,

VERBAL REPORTS

COMMITTEE MEMBERS' COMMENTS/REPQf
Director Corl-Lorono - No Report
Director Burkhart - No Report

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT
General Manager West reported l% dohnson Valley Hydrologic Investigation. She
has just received the final repgﬁt%g%d will close out the grant in the next few weeks.
Also, regarding Ames/Rech& Mojaye Water Agency will be approving Nolte Engineers
for the field inspection se&sis‘?. We are still waiting for Mojave Water Agency to
provide comment back, to ds=With regards to the BLM concerns over scouring in the
streambed and the effeéts of the project on natural flows in the streambed. Mojave
Water Agency Qag{;eemﬁﬁformed that the federal mitigation lands will be 1.16 acres,

This is an examipletof a project that affects both State and Federally listed species.

ITEMS FOR, NEXT AGENDA
Status ofthe ’Ames Project.

URI\fMENT - Director Corl-Lorono adjourned the meeting at 10:46 a.m.

Report for April 19 2012
PLEGS Committee Meeting
Approved on Xxxo0o xx, 2012
Page 3 of 3



